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          1  COMMITTEES ON AGING, HEALTH AND SENIOR CENTERS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ARROYO: Good morning

          3  everyone. I had a prepared statement, but my voice

          4  is not cooperating with me today, so I'm going to

          5  try to make it as brief as possible.  Good morning.

          6  I'm Maria Carmen Arroyo.  I'm Chair of the Committee

          7  on Aging.  I want to thank my colleagues Council

          8  Member Rivera, Chair of the Committee on Health, and

          9  Council Member Jimmy Vacca, who is Chair of the

         10  Committee for Senior Centers for joining us in this

         11  joint hearing to discuss a topic that I think is of

         12  great concern for our City and to open a

         13  conversation that I think is long overdue, HIV and

         14  AIDS in the aging population, and how we, as a City,

         15  must begin to look at the strategies that we need to

         16  develop in order to be able to develop services and

         17  resources for this population.  I look forward to

         18  testimony from the Department of Health. The

         19  Department for the Aging is here to answer

         20  questions. I understand we're not going to have

         21  testimony from the agency, but we welcome you

         22  gentlemen.  And we look forward to your testimony,

         23  and I look forward to hearing from the public on

         24  this very important topic.

         25                 And before I go on, I just want to
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          2  acknowledge the presence of Council Member Inez

          3  Dickens, from Manhattan, who is a Member of the

          4  Health Committee.  And Council Member Gale Brewer,

          5  from Manhattan was here, and she' a Member of the

          6  Committee on Aging.

          7                 Good morning gentlemen.  You may

          8  proceed.

          9                 I'm sorry.  Yes, I should do that.  I

         10  can't see that.  Can you read them?

         11                 COMMITTEE STAFF MEMBER: The first

         12  panel is Isaac Weisfuse, from the New York City

         13  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene; Jan Carl

         14  Park, also from DOHMH; and Jorge Romero, Assistant

         15  Commissioner from the Department for the Aging.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ARROYO: Identify

         17  yourselves for the record, and you may begin.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: Good

         19  morning.  My name is Dr. Isaac Weisfuse.  I'm Deputy

         20  Commissioner for Disease Control at the New York

         21  City Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.  I am

         22  joined on the panel with Mr. Jan Carl Park, who is

         23  the Director of our Offices of Policy and Community

         24  Planning at our Bureau of HIV.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ROMERO: And
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          2  Jorge Romero, Assistant Commissioner for the New

          3  York City Department for the Aging.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: First

          5  of all, I'd like to thank the Council for asking for

          6  a hearing on this important topic.  What I want to

          7  do in a couple of minutes, is describe the HIV/AIDS

          8  epidemic among people 50 and older in the City of

          9  New York.  Talking about new HIV cases, new

         10  concurrent HIV/AIDS diagnoses, as well as new AIDS

         11  cases.  I'll then give an overview that specifically

         12  targets this population of programs, describe some

         13  of our initiatives, and describe some of the future

         14  challenges the City will face as this population

         15  continues to grows.

         16                 Older persons account for an

         17  increasing proportion of persons living with

         18  HIV/AIDS in the City.  Ten years ago, 12 percent of

         19  the 53,955 people with HIV or AIDS in New York City

         20  were aged 50 or older.  By 2005, that percentage had

         21  more than doubled. People 50 years of age and older

         22  now comprise 31 percent of the more than 95,000

         23  people with HIV/AIDS in New York City.  And the

         24  proportion is expected to continue to grow as new

         25  diagnoses decline and survival increases.  In
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          2  addition, the proportion of people with HIV/AIDS age

          3  65 and older, has also tripled in the last ten

          4  years, from one percent in 1995 to three percent in

          5  2005, and this number too, will also continue to

          6  grow.

          7                 While HIV/AIDS prevalence among older

          8  adults has increased, the number of new HIV

          9  diagnoses among persons aged 50 and over has

         10  actually decreased steadily between 2001, the first

         11  full calendar year of HIV reporting, and 2005.

         12  While the proportion of new diagnoses has remained

         13  constant over this time period.  Of the 4,078 new

         14  diagnoses of HIV Citywide in 2001, 13 percent were

         15  in persons 50 and older.  And in 2005, of the 2,588

         16  new HIV diagnoses City wide, 14 percent were in

         17  persons 50 and older.  And only 1.5 percent in

         18  persons 65 and older.

         19                 Many persons newly diagnosed with HIV

         20  have already progressed to AIDS at the time of their

         21  first HIV test.  Although this number has decreased

         22  steadily Citywide, between 2001 and 2005, late or

         23  delayed diagnosis is still a significant problem in

         24  New York City.  There were 1,189 persons Citywide

         25  who were diagnosed with concurrent HIV/AIDS in
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          2  2001.  Of those, only 249 were 50 and older.  That

          3  constitutes 21 percent.  In 2005, 1,000 persons

          4  Citywide were diagnosed with concurrent HIV/AIDS

          5  diagnosis, of which 25 percent were 50 and older.

          6  While slightly higher, this does not represent a

          7  significant difference between 2001 and 2005. We

          8  continuously work to encourage New Yorkers to know

          9  their HIV status.  And I think the significance of

         10  that concurrent diagnosis is that people take  --

         11  should take a long time, in a matter of years, to go

         12  from HIV to AIDS.  So when somebody is concurrently

         13  diagnosed with HIV/AIDS that represents a failure in

         14  the ability for New York City to really identify

         15  them people early, so they can get into care and

         16  treatment early.  So that is a number we really want

         17  to decrease in the near future.

         18                 The number of new AIDS diagnoses

         19  peaked in 1993, at 12,489 cases, and has since been

         20  declining steadily.  However, the proportion of new

         21  diagnoses in younger versus older persons has

         22  changed over time.  In 1995, only 13 percent of new

         23  AIDS diagnoses were in persons 50 and older.  By

         24  2005, this percentage has risen to 24 percent.  The

         25  proportion of new diagnoses in 65 and older also
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          2  grew in the past decade, from one percent in 1995 to

          3  three percent in last year.

          4                 While somewhat paradoxical, this does

          5  represent a kind of progress.  Prior to the

          6  introduction of highly active antiretroviral therapy

          7  in 1996, persons with HIV and AIDS did not survive

          8  into their 50s.  Now, because of treatment and

          9  prevention programs, persons with HIV and AIDS are

         10  living longer and healthier lives.  This does not

         11  mean that there is an increase in new infections.

         12  Rather, it means that more people are surviving

         13  longer, and the relative proportion of people with

         14  HIV/AIDS 50 and older is increasing.  This is the

         15  kind of trend we want to see continue.

         16                 The effectiveness of antiretroviral

         17  therapy has slowed the progression of HIV to AIDS

         18  and markedly increased the survival rates of persons

         19  with HIV and AIDS.  Deaths decreased steadily

         20  Citywide in all age groups, from a peak of nearly

         21  8,000 in 1994 to  a low of 1,944 in 2005.  However,

         22  as the number of deaths declined, and persons live

         23  longer with HIV and AIDS, the proportion of deaths

         24  in persons aged 50 and older will continue to grow.

         25  Ten years ago, 17 percent of Citywide deaths in
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          2  persons with HIV/AIDS occurred in persons 50 and

          3  older, and that percentage grew to 35 percent by

          4  2001, and 47 percent by 2005.

          5                 The percentage of deaths due to HIV

          6  versus deaths due to other causes is different in

          7  older persons than in those under 50 years of age.

          8  In younger persons with HIV, non- HIV related causes

          9  of deaths account for 19 percent of all deaths.  In

         10  contrast, among persons 50 and older, other causes,

         11  such as heart disease, non- HIV- related cancer,

         12  chronic lower respiratory disease, and diabetes

         13  account for 32 percent of deaths.  And among persons

         14  65 and over, other causes account for 39 percent of

         15  deaths.  So as you see, as HIV/AIDS becomes more of

         16  a chronic disease, some of the other chronic

         17  diseases become more magnified in this age group.

         18                 So older persons with HIV are three

         19  times more likely to die of a non- HIV- related

         20  cause than are younger people. Ironically, this

         21  represents progress, because it means that persons

         22  with HIV/AIDS are living long enough to die of other

         23  causes, the typical causes associated with aging.

         24                 As you know, in 2004, the Department

         25  launched "Take Care New York", a health policy for
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          2  the entire City that priorities actions to help

          3  individuals, health care providers, communities, and

          4  the City as a whole, improve their health.  The

          5  policy promotes actions we can all take to keep

          6  healthy.  And knowing HIV status is one of the Take

          7  Care New York health priorities.  The expansion of

          8  rapid HIV testing has the potential to greatly

          9  increase the number of people who know their HIV

         10  status, and enable them to benefit from improvements

         11  in medical treatment, and take steps to prevent the

         12  spread of infection to others.  Accordingly, the

         13  DOHMH strongly encourages health care providers to

         14  routinely offer HIV testing to all patients ages 18

         15  to 64.

         16                 The Department for the Aging has been

         17  a great partner in promoting Take Care New York to

         18  our senior citizens. Including printing large- print

         19  health passports in four languages. These passports

         20  emphasize all ten Take Care New York priorities,

         21  including knowing one's HIV status.  We rely on

         22  DFTA's expertise in reaching the 60 and over

         23  population through their Citywide network of 329

         24  senior centers.

         25                 And I think it's worth saying that
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          2  Take Care New York is a lot broader than just

          3  knowing your HIV status.  And as we talk about

          4  chronic diseases being a more important issue, non-

          5  HIV chronic diseases being a more important issue in

          6  people over 50, Take Care New York has really  --

          7  many of the concepts of Take Care New York are

          8  exactly focusing on chronic diseases in general. So

          9  for example, one aspect is Know your Numbers, around

         10  hypertension and diabetes.  So we're trying to raise

         11  the bar of both awareness and care for the entire

         12  City population over 50 and those important chronic

         13  problems.

         14                 HIV/AIDS prevention and care are

         15  among our most critical public health priorities.

         16  Condoms prevent the spread of HIV and other STDs,

         17  and also prevent unwanted pregnancies.  As part of

         18  DOHMH's Free Condom Initiative, the Department

         19  distributed more than 15.5 million condoms

         20  throughout the City in the past 12 months.

         21  Organizations can request free condoms and lubricant

         22  online and reorder as needed.  The DOHMH HIV

         23  Training Institute also developed and implemented a

         24  training program for providers and consumers on the

         25  topic of HIV/AIDS in the 50 and older population.
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          2                 DOHMH's HIV prevention portfolio,

          3  funded through the CDC.  CDC has 14 contracts with

          4  programs that include people 50 and older in their

          5  targeted prevention efforts.  These programs include

          6  case management, individual and group interventions,

          7  public health education and outreach, and prevention

          8  for HIV positive persons.

          9                 Federal treatment programs, including

         10  Ryan White and the Federal Housing Opportunities for

         11  People with AIDS, offer services to New York City

         12  residents in more than 16 categories, including

         13  mental health, housing placement and assistance,

         14  treatment adherence, access to care and maintenance

         15  and care, outreach and early intervention services,

         16  food and nutrition, and substance abuse services.

         17  While HOPWA and Ryan White target and treat people

         18  of all ages, there are 16 organizations where more

         19  than 40 percent of clients are aged 55 or older.

         20                 In 2004, the Persons with HIV/AIDS

         21  Advisory Group of the Ryan White HIV Planning

         22  Council conducted a forum entitled, "Over 50 and

         23  Long- Term Survivors Forum".  Issues covered

         24  included epidemiology, treatment, nutrition,

         25  exercise, aging, mental health issues, caregiving,
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          2  stigma, and sexuality.  More than 150 consumers,

          3  providers, and governmental representatives attended

          4  this forum.

          5                 Another initiative that we work with

          6  the Planning Council is something called "CHAIN",

          7  the Community Health Advisory Information Network.

          8  CHAIN is a longitudinal study, which allows us to

          9  examine the experiences of broadly representative

         10  cohort of New York City residents who are living

         11  with HIV and AIDS.  The study provides the Planning

         12  Council with data on health status, service

         13  utilization patterns, barriers to care, needs for

         14  health and social services, quality of services, the

         15  impact of services on health and quality of life,

         16  and many other aspects of the lives of people living

         17  with HIV and AIDS.

         18                 The Planning Council funded a

         19  specific CHAIN study on the 50 and older population

         20  in 2002.  The study found that older CHAIN

         21  participants are in poorer physical health and

         22  report higher prevalence of a wide spectrum of

         23  chronic problems.  Older CHAIN participants also

         24  report with more chronic diseases than the younger

         25  group, including more breathing problems, heart
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          2  problems, diabetes, and especially, hypertension and

          3  arthritis or rheumatism.

          4                 To recap, persons 50 and older

          5  represent 14 percent of new diagnoses of HIV; and

          6  the proportion of people with HIV/AIDS age 50 and

          7  older is increasing in New York City each year,

          8  accounting for almost one- third of the entire

          9  group.  Almost half of all the deaths in people with

         10  HIV/AIDS are in persons aged 50 and older, and these

         11  individuals are more likely to have lived long

         12  enough to die of causes other than HIV.  With this

         13  longevity comes the challenge of treating both the

         14  HIV infection and all of the other health issues

         15  that occur with aging.

         16                 In the coming years, we will see that

         17  people with HIV/AIDS in the 50 and older population

         18  will continue to grow as more HIV infected persons

         19  live longer, on appropriate medical therapy.  Of

         20  particular concern is the possibility that the

         21  growing cohort of older Americans with HIV/AIDS will

         22  face complications arising from HIV and other

         23  chronic diseases that are commonly found in all

         24  older adults.  The full affect that age- related

         25  diseases have on people with HIV/AIDS receiving
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          2  antiretroviral therapy remains unknown.  As this

          3  population continues to grow, so will its need for

          4  more medical care, social services support, and

          5  mental health services.

          6                 Thank you again for the opportunity

          7  to present testimony to the Council on this very

          8  important topic.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ARROYO: Thank you for

         10  your testimony. I just want to acknowledge, we've

         11  been joined by Council Member Sara Gonzalez, from

         12  Brooklyn.  And my Co- Chair, Chair of the Committee

         13  on Health, our Majority Leader, Joel Rivera, who,

         14  from here on in, will take over the hearing, because

         15  my voice is going to leave me in a little bit.

         16  Thank you Joel.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         18  much Madam Chair. Thank you very much for joining us

         19  here today to discuss this important topic.

         20                 I appreciate your testimony, and I

         21  wanted to ask you, some of the programs that's being

         22  instituted within the senior centers, do we know how

         23  many senior centers are actually implemented these

         24  programs we're discussing?  HIV and AIDS, with their

         25  population?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ROMERO: I

          3  cannot give you the exact amount of all senior

          4  centers who are doing this.  I can give you some

          5  examples of  --  for example, one of our senior

          6  centers in Queens the Jamaica Service Program for

          7  Older Adults, has a program called, "Seniors

          8  Educating Seniors: HIV/AIDS 101".  And in the Bronx,

          9  Citizens Advise Bureau also has education programs

         10  around HIV/AIDS.  We know that in all the health

         11  promotion efforts that we are doing in each of the

         12  senior centers, as my counterpart here, the Deputy

         13  Commissioner described, through our Take Care New

         14  York, this is one of the points, there's one of the

         15  points here where it is being discussed in terms of

         16  knowing your HIV status.

         17                 All our promotion, health promotion

         18  programs at senior centers discuss this situation.

         19  And they are aware of it. But to tell you, you know,

         20  if each senior center have an HIV/AIDS program, I

         21  don't think that they have.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay.  So have

         23  you  --  your Take Care New York, you've actually

         24  gone to the majority of the senior centers and

         25  spoken on this topic?  Or  --  and has there been
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          2  any of the rapid testing with the swabs with the

          3  seniors?  I mean, is that something that's advisable

          4  just to get some data?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ROMERA: Well,

          6  as I  --  that's a good suggestion.  I don't  --  we

          7  don't  --  I have no knowledge that we are doing

          8  that at senior centers.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: My Co- Chair

         10  wants to follow up.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ARROYO: The booklet, Take

         12  Care New York, is that what you're referencing

         13  there?  What is DFTA doing specifically to target

         14  getting information out to the older population?  In

         15  particular, in the senior centers.  I heard in the

         16  testimony that organizations can request free

         17  condoms and reorder. Are the senior centers

         18  requesting them?  Do we know?  Do you guys have

         19  information that tells you that our senior centers

         20  are actively seeking the resource available to them?

         21

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: I don't

         23  have knowledge of that now, but we can look into  --

         24    because it's a sort of computer reorder system  --

         25    if any of the addresses match the senior centers,
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          2  or if any of the titles match the senior centers.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ARROYO: Deputy

          4  Commissioner, is there  --  as far as you know, are

          5  the senior centers signed up to request the

          6  resource?  Or is this information that DFTA pretty

          7  much leaves to the individual centers to participate

          8  or not?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: I can't

         10  talk about the DFTA part, but any organization can

         11  order it.  We don't  -- there's no  --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ARROYO: My question was

         13  directed at the Deputy Commissioner of DFTA.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ROMERO: All of

         15  DFTA's health programs are targeted to seniors.  Our

         16  Health Promotions Unit has several hundred

         17  volunteers that disseminate health information about

         18  various health- related topics.  More specifically,

         19  our Health Promotions staff oversees several health-

         20  focused programs.  The first is the State World

         21  program, which has an exercise in a stress

         22  management focus.  Our hypertension monitoring

         23  program instructs with volunteer to educate seniors

         24  about their systolic and diastolic pressure.  Our

         25  Alert and Alive program teaches our volunteers how
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          2  to facilitate group discussion organized to share

          3  experiences and help resolve problems.  Our Partner

          4  to Partner program is a peer counseling initiative

          5  that builds on self help methodology to link trained

          6  and knowledgeable seniors with peers. Our Big Apple

          7  Strollers train senior center directors to organize

          8  walking clubs, which encourage seniors to exercise

          9  regularly.  And finally, our newest program, Know

         10  Your Numbers, trains our volunteers to educate

         11  seniors about their blood pressure, glucose level,

         12  and cholesterol.

         13                 Our volunteers distribute the Take

         14  Care New York health record to senior as well.  In

         15  addition, the Department, in conjunction with the

         16  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene, conduct

         17  regular location conferences on single- topic

         18  issues.  The most recent was about diabetes.  The

         19  previous conference was about cardiovascular

         20  disease.  We recently started an initiative with the

         21  Department of Health and Mental Health Hygiene (sic)

         22  where we had screen seniors for depression.  We plan

         23  to expand this initiative to additional

         24  neighborhoods and the homebound this coming fiscal

         25  year.
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          2                 Furthermore, in partnership Hunters

          3  Brookdale Center on Aging, we developed a health

          4  survey to gain a better understanding of the health

          5  status of the seniors in our centers, and to help

          6  improve our efforts to serve them.  Through our

          7  collaboration with Brookdale, we are now serving

          8  approximately 500 seniors over a total of ten senior

          9  centers, two in each borough.  And we expect the

         10  results in several months.

         11                 Finally, senior centers also do their

         12  own health programming, which can include HIV/AIDS

         13  education.  For example, I mentioned before, JSPOA

         14  (phonetic) that has a program in Citizens Advise

         15  Bureau.  This is all to say Councilwoman, that  --

         16  Madam Chairman  --  that we promote education in

         17  health issues for seniors.  And it includes in there

         18  the HIV/AIDS health promotion part.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ARROYO: Okay.  So let me

         20  ask a more specific question.  Does DFTA have any

         21  programs, or any plans to institute educational

         22  programs specifically surrounding HIV and AIDS?

         23  What I heard was a very broad spectrum of

         24  educational programs, one targeted specifically for

         25   --  and with the intent of getting seniors informed
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          2  and motivated to know what their status is.

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ROMERA: As I

          4  mentioned before, the unit is currently focused on

          5  current roster of health programs.  We understand

          6  that seniors with HIV/AIDS are aging into the

          7  Department's demographic, and that seniors continue

          8  to be sexually active.  To expand our current

          9  portfolio of health programs, we will have to

         10  recruit and train additional volunteers, as well as

         11  develop a senior- specific HIV/AIDS curriculum.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ARROYO: What is your

         13  target frame, timeframe, for having that program

         14  completed and implemented?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ROMERA: We are

         16  looking into the new fiscal year.  I cannot give you

         17  a specific, you know, time. But in the new fiscal

         18  year, this is one of the parts that we're looking

         19  very aggressively in the Department to institute.

         20  One of the  --  that's what our target is.  In the

         21  next six months, we probably will have something

         22  more concrete.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ARROYO: Okay.  Thank you.

         24    Mr. Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very
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          2  much.  Mr. Romero, you stated accurately, the fact

          3  that seniors are still sexually active.  And I know

          4  within the testimony that was presented, the health

          5  care providers are you know, trained to reach out to

          6  people from ages 18 to 64.  But if you pick up the

          7  New York Post today, you know, you'll see that this

          8  guy from Bravetta Associates, at 68, having sex with

          9  a madam.  And you see that in senior centers, people

         10  are still doing it.  So I was wondering why aren't

         11  the health care providers being trained adequately

         12  to you know, do the testing in the older population?

         13    Or being, you know, incentivized to test in the

         14  older populations.  Because they are a population

         15  that still is active, and that is you know,

         16  something that we should be concerned with.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: You say

         18  the health care providers?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Yes, because I

         20  mean, I know within the testimony that was

         21  presented, you know, the health care providers are

         22  you know, requested to test all patients ages 18 to

         23  64.  And why not an older population than that?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: I would

         25  defer that question to the Department of Health.
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          2                 You know, I think it's a good point.

          3  I mean again, right now, there does seem to be a

          4  drop off in terms of our HIV diagnoses in the 65 and

          5  older population compared to the 50 to 64.  We're

          6  certainly not opposed to HIV testing in the 65 and

          7  older population, but we you know, are trying to

          8  focus the recommendations according to the data that

          9  we have.  If the data would shift or change over

         10  time, which it might, because people with HIV/AIDS

         11  are growing older and older, then that's something

         12  that we would reconsider.

         13                 In terms of rapid  --  you had

         14  mentioned the rapid testing.  You know, we haven't

         15  done rapid testing specific to the elderly, although

         16  we've tried to do it in  --  introduce it in many

         17  places that might see the elderly, such as a

         18  hospital facilities. But obviously, if there was you

         19  know, such an opportunity or concern, we would

         20  strongly consider partnering to you know, to do

         21  that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Well I think we

         23  should, because I mean, as I stated, you know, in

         24  today's paper it shows how a 68 year old you know,

         25  power broker was actually with a 31- year old madam.
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          2    So that goes to show you that you know, people are

          3  still being active at later years, and can still you

          4  know, distribute the disease you know, in a sexual

          5  manner.  So I think that we have to take you know a

          6  huge amount of caution when we stop testing, or stop

          7  promoting the testing at above the age of 64 years

          8  old.  And I think the rapid testing technology is

          9  phenomenal, is less invasive, it's something that

         10  seniors should be fine with, and I think that we

         11  really do need to take the responsibility and go out

         12  there to the senior centers and really do the rapid

         13  testing and make sure that people know their status.

         14    Because I mean, you know, I hate to say it, but

         15  with the advent of Viagra, Cialis, and Avitra, and

         16  all the other different you know, pills out there, I

         17  mean, people are active to later ages, and we have

         18  to keep with the times and recognize that you know,

         19  what if someone didn't know their status ten years

         20  ago, you know, or maybe just found out or something

         21  and they have it, and you know, they're living with

         22  it you know, just transmit it.  I mean, you just do

         23  not know and you know, to me, it's a little bit

         24  disturbing that we're not aggressively targeting

         25  this older population.  I mean, we do need a real
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          2  structured, you know, program for the older adult

          3  population.   So are we going to do that?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: Well

          5  again, I think we would be happy to work with DFTA

          6  or any other community- based organization that was

          7  in developing a you know, a program to target

          8  seniors.  But there are rapid testing initiatives

          9  out at many hospitals that see older folks as well.

         10  So you know, to some extent, they're covered, but in

         11  terms of that directed outreach, we'd be happy to

         12  work with DFTA or other groups to get that going.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: You know, I think

         14  it would be a great collaboration.  Because we know

         15  that you know, sometimes adult men, you know, guys

         16  will be guys, don't want to go to hospitals if they

         17  don't need to.  Or minimize the amount of times they

         18  go to a doctor's office.  So I mean, It's important

         19  that we reach out them and not wait for them to

         20  reach out to us.  And I would hate to believe that

         21  we're saying just because this population is already

         22  65 or 70 years old, that they're already you know,

         23  too far gone and we're not going to even pay

         24  attention to them.  That we're just going to focus

         25  on one population.

                                                            27

          1  COMMITTEES ON AGING, HEALTH AND SENIOR CENTERS

          2                 I mean, I think we have efforts on

          3  the younger population, they can be improved

          4  obviously.  But I think that we just cannot turn a

          5  blind eye to the fact that you know, the older

          6  population is still  --  I mean, even if we only

          7  have a couple of hundred cases new in the older

          8  population, that's a couple of hundred people that

          9  we should test, make sure they know their status,

         10  and make sure they don't you know, unfortunately

         11  transmit it to another individual unknowingly.  So I

         12  mean, I really would encourage that you know, we in

         13  the City Council, we've given money in the past to

         14  rapid HIV testing, to and the Department of Health

         15  and to HHC, so I mean, we really should take some of

         16  that money and really allocate it towards the adult

         17  population as well.

         18                 My colleagues also have questions, so

         19  I want to give them the opportunity.  Council Member

         20  Brewer is first.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you for

         22  your testimony. I had a question just about the

         23  training, because I'm just unclear. Who actually

         24  does the training, for instance, for those who would

         25  be doing the discussion in the senior center?  And
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          2  obviously, it's a different kind of discussion than

          3  you might have with a younger population.  And also,

          4  I know you mentioned that you're doing some training

          5  in the hospitals.  I mean, many seniors don't go to

          6  senior centers.  Obviously.  The gentleman here I

          7  guess says he didn't go to a senior center.  So my

          8  question is, who actually is supposed to be doing

          9  the training?  Is it something that Health is

         10  initiating? Is it something that within  --  I have

         11  been to wonderful health related programs in senior

         12  centers all the time.  They're excellent.  But you

         13  know, actually, I haven't heard any discussion at

         14  them on HIV/AIDS.  Maybe just because of the ones I

         15  went to. But certainly physical exercise, yoga,

         16  dance, et cetera, very much a part of the senior

         17  centers to the Department of Health, and the

         18  Department of Aging's credit.

         19                 So I'm wondering who is actually

         20  doing this training of people to understand how

         21  older individuals can be approached on this topic,

         22  HIV/AIDS?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: Well we

         24  conducted a number of trainings that were not

         25  necessarily for organizations working in senior
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          2  centers, but more generally who were interested in

          3  this issue.  And did discuss that with you know, a

          4  wide variety of different organizations.  I'm not

          5  sure about the training of the DFTA staff.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ROMERA: At the

          7  trainings that we have had with the Department of

          8  Health, at senior centers, there's always a

          9  representative from the Department of Health who

         10  makes the presentation.  And we do this

         11  collaboratively.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: On HIV/AIDS or

         13  just in general?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ROMERA: No,

         15  no.  In general. In the ones that we have had in the

         16  past.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.  I'm

         18  just asking because it does seem that that should be

         19  a focus if, in fact, we are getting older, which is

         20  obviously true, and the Baby Boomers are getting

         21  older, which is true, hitting this magic number.

         22  Then the question is, it does seem to me that in the

         23  hospitals, not to mention in the centers, there

         24  needs to be some additional training. Obviously, the

         25  rapid testing could be part of it.  There are many
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          2  components that could be involved.  But it does seem

          3  to me that that could be a focus.  So many seniors

          4  are not in the senior centers.  And I do think we do

          5  need to realize that to be honest with you, the

          6  folks in the senior centers, you could, in fact,

          7  target and do it well through the Department for the

          8  Aging.  But there are just many others.  Hospitals

          9  would seem a good location.

         10                 Okay.  The other question I have is,

         11  just in terms of Ryan White. I know you mentioned in

         12  your testimony that there are 16 organizations where

         13  more than 40 percent serve clients 55 and older.  Is

         14  that a number that has always existed?  We always

         15  experience so many cuts to Ryan White.  So I'm just

         16  wondering if there are  --  this is the number of

         17  organizations that has always served this age group?

         18    Or is it a larger, lower?  And how are we target

         19  this group through the Ryan White funding?  What

         20  there is of it.

         21                 MR. PARK: Hi.  I'm Jan Park, the

         22  Director of the Office of HIV/AIDS Policy and

         23  Community Planning.  Thank you for calling this

         24  today.  That's recent data.  We didn't do a

         25  comparison over time.  So it's hard to answer your
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          2  question.  There are many contracts that are covered

          3  through Ryan White funding.  And the programs that

          4  are provided through Ryan White funding are

          5  available to all ages.  But there are some that are

          6  seniors are drawn to.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right.

          8                 MR. PARK: And I think that's

          9  reflected in these numbers here.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So obviously,

         11  those programs have excellent staff, who are

         12  thinking on this topic, and who are trained.  So

         13  that might be another place to seek suggestions for

         14  the places where there isn't that kind of fabulous

         15  staff training.

         16                 MR. PARK: That's a good observation.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.  Thank

         18  you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: We've also been

         20  joined by Council Members Mendez and Sears.  And

         21  next on the list of Council Members to speak is

         22  Council Member Gonzalez, then Sears, then Dickens.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Good

         24  morning.  I'd like to just get a little

         25  clarification on  --  in looking to the future, to
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          2  hopefully have this program, because I would say

          3  that rather than if, when this program happens

          4  between DFTA and Department of Health, for seniors,

          5  is there any thought process in respect to

          6  possibility of peer training, having seniors who are

          7  trained and then will go in turn and speak to other

          8  seniors about HIV/AIDS? And I do understand that a

          9  lot of seniors don't attend, as my colleague said,

         10  the senior centers, so that also will, in my

         11  opinion, it should be a lot of dissemination and

         12  outreach, especially in the hospitals.  But my

         13  thought process is counseling. Once somebody

         14  understands that they're HIV positive.  Because as

         15  we age, and our bodies get frail, and mentally, we

         16  go through a lot of weariness, what else, you know,

         17  and what would be in place in respect to counseling

         18  once someone finds out they're HIV positive? Has

         19  that been a thought process?  Maybe Commissioner

         20  from Department of Health could respond.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: Well

         22  you know, I think there are unique issues to the

         23  elderly that are you know there, and certainly  --

         24  or would be there for somebody who is HIV positive.

         25  So I would think that for an HIV positive individual
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          2  who is newly diagnosed in the 50- or even 60- year

          3  old age range, there's probably a different set of

          4  issues, maybe overlapping, as with a younger person.

          5    So I think we probably need to do a better job at

          6  identifying those issues, to make sure, that in the

          7  places that do see this population, they're you

          8  knows, they're addressed.

          9                 I suspect a lot of them are, because

         10  a lot of the -  many of the places that get funded,

         11  for example, from Ryan White, are within facilities

         12  that see a whole variety of individuals and are

         13  well, you know, doing a good job in serving them.

         14  So I don't have reason  --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Okay, but as

         16  you yourself --  I believe you're also Mental Health

         17    --  so understanding that it would have a lot of

         18  effect on a person mentally, to be diagnosed, and

         19  not understand, because though today, HIV/AIDS, we

         20  treat and it's chronic, but it's treatable, not like

         21  in the '70s and the 80's when you know, our friends

         22  and our folks were dying. So though it's still a

         23  major, major issue for us in the City, I would

         24  expect that we would prepare for a program that's

         25  going to hopefully have all these you know, factor
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          2  all this in.  The counseling is extremely important.

          3                 And then I'd like to just ask from

          4  the Aging, what about the peer counseling?  Is that

          5  something that you know, you would even think about

          6  in respect to coming together with the Department of

          7  Health, to train people who are seniors, who can

          8  learn about, how you get AIDS, what is AIDS, who's

          9  at risk, so on and so forth.  And how do you deal

         10  with it?  How do you deal with the HIV situation?

         11  Is that a thought process?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ROMERO:

         13  Absolutely.  Through our Partner and Partner

         14  Program, which is a peer counseling initiative, has

         15  been  --  has shown that it is very effective.  So

         16  this will be one of the ideas that we will include

         17  in our you know, development of the curriculum.  And

         18  work with the Department of Health and bring this to

         19  fruition.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: And perhaps

         21  this isn't the time, but I was just wondering, are

         22  we also working with the State in the future,

         23  Department of Health?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: We work

         25  with the State Department of Health on a daily
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          2  basis,  --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: But I'm

          4  saying in respect to this particular issue, because

          5  I know personally, I was with the AIDS Institute for

          6  over 12 years, on contract, so I did a lot of work

          7  with HIV/AIDS, and so I think when we do it

          8  together, and we understand the need, across the

          9  board, it's stronger and the work is --

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: We

         11  collaborate with the State in our prevention

         12  planning activities.  There's a State HIV Prevention

         13  planning body and there's a City HIV Prevention

         14  planning body.  And we have seats on both of them,

         15  and we collaborate with them together.  I think the

         16  topic that you're raising here about peer education

         17  is a good one.  And it has been the bedrock of much

         18  of our prevention activities, where peer- to peer

         19  interactions tend to be, have proven to be highly

         20  effective. Whether they're among seniors, whether

         21  they're amongst Latinos, whether they're amongst men

         22  of color, or affects of men, so that is really a

         23  core foundation of prevention activities around HIV

         24  and AIDS.  And it's been recognized both by the CDC

         25  and by the City here.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Thank you.

          3  And I just want to say that in the future, and I

          4  would love to be able to be a part of this more so,

          5  because I believe that if we can plan these programs

          6  and implement them in respect to motivating people,

          7  and that would even mean the peer program with

          8  stipends for seniors and so on and so forth, I think

          9  that that would be a definite way of getting the

         10  message to our City and to hopefully lower the

         11  numbers.

         12  Thank you.  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: We've been joined

         14  by Council Members Jimmy Vacca and Kendall Stewart

         15  as well.  I think that's actually a great idea.  We

         16  should have a senior, you know, peer program,

         17  traveling all, you know, DFTA senior centers.

         18  Really talking about this issue in collaboration

         19  with the Department of Health, and maybe having a

         20  health care provider going with them to do the rapid

         21  testing.  I mean, that will be a great way you know,

         22  to make sure that it's an easy communicative effort,

         23  you know, with seniors going the talking and then on

         24  the back side, the health care provider will come in

         25  and give some of the technical support. So I want to
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          2  thank you Councilwoman for that very you know,

          3  profound, innovative idea.  And I think we should

          4  challenge both DFTA and the Department of Health to

          5  implement such a program you know, very shortly, so

          6  we can start you know, moving forward.

          7                 Next we have Council Member Sears,

          8  then Dickens, then Mendez.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Chair.  Good morning Commissioner.

         11                 I think I'm seeing things a little

         12  differently.  So one is that of the numbers, when

         13  you say that the 50 and older, you have a 14 percent

         14  of new diagnoses, and that will ultimately reach a

         15  higher percentage.  Has this been broken down into

         16  the percentage for women, and the percentage for men

         17  in those categories?  Because you know, I've run

         18  senior centers, and if you have an understanding of

         19  them, you're not going to get the older women and

         20  the older men to talk about this personal hygiene

         21  together.  So as a result, I really think that one,

         22  if we're going to run these programs, and I think

         23  they certainly are shedding some good light on the

         24  issue, we need to look at what is the increase in

         25  women within these age groups.  What is the increase
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          2  in men.  And then look, if you are going to have

          3  this addressed at senior centers, or in other areas,

          4  at AARP meetings, I wouldn't just leave it to senior

          5  centers, because you're including the age 50 and

          6  over.

          7                 As a result, I think a little work

          8  needs to be done before you implement some other

          9  programs.  And that is, I think you need to identify

         10  what is the increase in women, and what is the

         11  increase in men.  And then I think you need to look

         12  at how you will address that.  And that would be

         13  easy to do, because in the senior centers, there

         14  would be programs for the women on this personal

         15  hygiene, and then you would have for men.

         16                 And certainly it is an issue for

         17  AARP.  And I would suggest that with the AARP, since

         18  they are so deeply involved in health, that there

         19  might be a meeting of the minds of how this issue

         20  would be addressed in AARP meetings.  Because

         21  there's a huge sensitivity in the older population

         22  about discussing or reviewing anything in mixed

         23  genders.  It's like young teenagers.  They do more

         24  when they are in  --  along with their own sex than

         25  they are in mixed.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: Yes, I

          3  think the point on the data is a good one.  I don't

          4  have the male/female gender breakdown  --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I understand.

          6  Is that possible to do?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: It's

          8  easily possible, so --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well I think if

         10  that's done, then there would be a big step forward

         11  on how you can reach this aging population.  And I

         12  do think, from the very beginning, that it needs to

         13  be addressed separately with the sexes, in

         14  addressing it as personal hygiene.  And if you can

         15  do that, I think it would be a big step forward, and

         16  certainly we can do these things.  There's a Women's

         17  Committee here.  There's this Health Committee.  And

         18  we would be able to even do the networking for you,

         19  and having this awareness to the sensitivity.  If

         20  you could do that, and give it to the Committee, I

         21  think this could be very helpful.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: We will

         23  certainly follow up and give you that data.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you very

         25  much.  Thank you Mr. Chair.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

          3  much Council Member.  Next we have Council Member

          4  Dickens, and then Mendez.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you so

          6  much Mr. Chair, and also to Dr. Weisfuse for your

          7  testimony.

          8                 And I do want to piggyback on my

          9  colleague Council Member Gonzalez, who did indicate

         10  about peers doing it.  Because for instance, your

         11  free condom initiative is terrific.  But it mainly

         12  works in those that are under 30.  At senior

         13  centers, at least in my district, where you have the

         14  condoms available, it's not being utilized widely,

         15  and seniors do not discuss this.  They don't like

         16  the discussion, they don't want other people to know

         17  that they're trying to get condoms.  Or discuss

         18  personal health needs.  So I just wanted to

         19  piggyback on my colleague's observation of that  --

         20  that this would be something that would be well

         21  thought of for the Department to look into that

         22  along with the Department of the Aging.

         23                 But my question quickly, is have any

         24  specific guidelines been developed to assist not

         25  only private physicians, but physicians and other
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          2  medical health care providers and hospitals, both

          3  privately and in network centers, as well, because

          4  no one  has even talked about the network centers,

          5  where seniors do go.  Has any guidelines been

          6  developed that would assist those medical providers

          7  with addressing not only of the sexual issues of our

          8  seniors, but also the specific issues effecting not

          9  just HIV but the chronic diseases that come along

         10  with that as we age, such as hypertension, such as

         11  diabetes, that is problematic as we age, but in

         12  people with HIV and AIDS, it is increased?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: Let me

         14  offer a couple of initiatives that we've done in the

         15  past several years. Unfortunately, not only do some

         16  of the elderly not want to talk about sexual

         17  activities, a lot of doctors don't want to talk

         18  about sexual activities.  And that is bad, because

         19  that's their job.  So we offer a number of different

         20  encouragements to you know, to give physicians A,

         21  the understanding that that's an expectation of

         22  their job, and B, give them tools to be able to do

         23  that.

         24                 We've done that through a number of

         25  trainings that we've done over the years.  Usually
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          2  by our Bureau of Sexually Transmitted Diseases,

          3  because if you're not going to talk about sexual

          4  activity, you have really no hope at dealing with

          5  STDs in any age population.  So we have done what we

          6  call public health detailing.  And what that means

          7  is, we have staff who, every three or four months,

          8  take a new topic, and they have done things like

          9  depression, and hypertension, and diabetes, as

         10  examples, amongst other things they've done.  And

         11  they focus  --  and also on tobacco control  --  so

         12  there's a whole menu of things they've done.  But

         13  they focus on the several high- need neighborhoods

         14  in the City that --  and they have generated a list

         15  of all the providers.  And they go and they

         16  literally knock on the door, and sit down with the

         17  provider, and go through those issues, and give them

         18  support, give them material for their waiting room,

         19  give them the  --  circulate the guidelines that are

         20  out there.  And try to give them information to be

         21  able to change their behavior, which is to take

         22  better care of their patients.  And it's modelled

         23  after a pharmaceutical visits where drug companies

         24  try to change the behavior of physicians to use

         25  certain pharmaceuticals.  So we sort of take that
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          2  approach but obviously do that to better the chronic

          3  care of their patients.  And these are also

          4  neighborhoods where there are high rates of HIV

          5  infection as well.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you so

          7  much.  And I just might add that also we might

          8  consider talking to the community boards across the

          9  City, because all of  --  each community board has a

         10  committee on aging.  And that might be also a great

         11  resource.

         12                 Thank you so much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         14  Council Member. Also, we've been joined by Council

         15  Member Gallagher, from Queens. Next at bat is

         16  Council Member Mendez.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Good morning.

         18  Since I have you here, I have to ask, since you said

         19  that these services are available to everyone,

         20  regardless of age, are they available to individuals

         21  under 18?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: I'm

         23  sorry, which services were you  --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Any services

         25  with Ryan White funding, you mentioned earlier in

                                                            44

          1  COMMITTEES ON AGING, HEALTH AND SENIOR CENTERS

          2  one of your responses.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: Yes,

          4  they're available to all ages.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Okay.  I also

          6  want to know, and I came in a little late, so I

          7  don't know if someone had asked this question about

          8  language access.  Most seniors feel more comfortable

          9  talking in their native language.  Some of them came

         10  to this country later on, may not know English, and

         11  know it very well. And so in order to really

         12  understand everything, it would have to be done in

         13  their native language.  And then also, there are

         14  cultural differences, and if that will you know, is

         15  that going to be dealt with?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ROMERO: Yes.

         17  We are very sensitive of all those issues, the

         18  issue.  And every information, we're ready to help

         19  with that.  For example, Take Care of New York is

         20  translated in various languages.  And also, the

         21  information that we do there, if we go to a senior

         22  center that has a particular need in terms of

         23  language, we will have translators and people who

         24  will speak in their own language.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Okay.  Thank
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          2  you.  And in terms of other diseases, and my

          3  colleague, Council Member Dickens brought up you

          4  know, diabetes, and how this may affect it.  But

          5  what about Alzheimers?  Which affects individuals,

          6  older individuals, and how this might play with

          7  someone who has contracted HIV or AIDS?  Where they

          8  might start to decompensate even faster, because of

          9  the two diseases together.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: You

         11  know, we're not aware of other studies that says

         12  that HIV positive persons are more likely to get

         13  Alzheimers, but clearly, that could happen, as the

         14  you know, people with HIV/AIDS may you know, may age

         15  into the group where Alzheimers' becomes more

         16  prevalent.  To my knowledge, you know, we don't have

         17  specific  --  we don't fund specific HIV

         18  positive/Alzheimers programs.  However, many of the

         19  you know, Ryan White programs, or other programs

         20  that are institutional based, do have Alzheimers

         21  programs that could you know, be supportive to that

         22  group.  So for example, if you know, all the HHC

         23  hospitals, although I'm not familiar with you know,

         24  what they do on Alzheimers, to be honest, you know,

         25  have those types of facilities. So it's a good
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          2  issue.  We'd have to look and see  --  we're not

          3  aware that it's at more risk, but clearly, it's

          4  going to be an issue over time.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Well a lot of

          6  individuals, at some point, who have the disease,

          7  sometimes develop dementia.  So there would be some

          8  kind of correlation.  But what about someone who has

          9  Alzheimers, and then contracts the disease?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: You

         11  know, I'm not an expert on Alzheimers, and you know,

         12  we'd have to talk to some of the folks either in the

         13  Mental Hygiene part of the agency, or other parts of

         14  the City to get a better focus on that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Well I think

         16  it's important, because Alzheimers is typically a

         17  disease for older individuals, and we need to look

         18  at the co- relation of how these two diseases would

         19  work together, and how it would affect the

         20  individual.  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         22  much Council Member.  I just have a couple of

         23  follow- up questions.  I just wanted to know, for

         24  the population of 50 and older, how many people from

         25  the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene, HIV
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          2  Training Institute were trained to deal with this

          3  specific age group?

          4                 MR. PARK: We in the past, had two

          5  trainers, who were actively interested in this

          6  issue.  And they developed a course to sort of teach

          7  providers about the issues that affect this

          8  population.  They have both retired.  And of course,

          9  they reached the age of retirement.  And so they're

         10  no longer with us.  But we also have a number of

         11  individuals, and some of whom are present here

         12  today, that sit on our planning bodies to speak to

         13  this issue in those capacities.  And I, myself, am

         14  HIV positive, and over 50. So I too have an interest

         15  in this topic.  And bring it to the attention, or at

         16  our activities, when it's appropriate.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: So you had two

         18  trainers that retired.  Now who else is training the

         19  other providers?  And how many of these providers

         20  exist out there?  That are  --

         21                 MR. PARKS: HIV Training Institute

         22  focuses on a number of different courses.  One of

         23  the courses that was offered, was on this topic.  We

         24  have yet to identify or replace those particular

         25  individuals with that level of expertise.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: How long has it

          3  been vacant for?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: I think

          5  the last course was about a year ago.  Maybe a

          6  little less.  We also have a roster of roughly 30

          7  organizations over the years, that have taken the

          8  course.  I don't have, though, the number of people.

          9    I don't know if we can get that, but we have the

         10  list of the organizations.

         11                 MR. PARK: I think it was a total of

         12  maybe close to maybe 200 organizations over time

         13  that has accessed this course. And benefitted from

         14  that course.  But this is not the only place in the

         15  City that this issue is discussed, or there are

         16  trainings. There are Senior Action, and Gay

         17  Environment, which works with this issue.  There's

         18  the national HIV Over 50 association, that holds a

         19  conference on this issue.  ACRIA is doing a

         20  concentrated study on this population.  There are a

         21  number of other places other than the HIV Training

         22  Institute, that also speak to this issue as well.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: So how do we

         24  steal some of these people from the other

         25  organizations and get then to join our ranks, and
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          2  teach our providers?  How do we do that?  I mean,

          3  it's been over a year.  You know, the two people

          4  retired.  We should really have a team in place of

          5  our staffing to be able to target and train the

          6  providers.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ARROYO: Maybe "steal" is

          8  a heavy word. Maybe we can use "motivate" them to

          9  move over.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay. I'll just

         11  take them.  It happens all the time.

         12                 Just want to ask another question.

         13  And obviously, different age groups, you got to deal

         14  with them differently.  You can't have a one- size-

         15  fits- all approach when you deal with different age

         16  groups.  So I just wanted to find out how do your

         17  programs differentiate from the younger population

         18  to the older population?  In terms of  --

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: Could

         20  you just be more specific, like what age groups

         21  you're differentiating?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Yes.  Like you

         23  know, the obvious from people between the ages of 50

         24  to 64; and then those who are 65 and older.  What

         25  is, I mean, the difference in outreach, you know, to
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          2  these populations?  How do you handle them

          3  differently?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: Well,

          5  CDC has set forward a series of science- based

          6  interventions.  And they're called DEBIs, Defusing

          7  of Effective Behavior Interventions.  And they speak

          8  to very specific targeted populations, whether it's

          9  by age, or whether it's by race, or by risk.  And

         10  many of the agencies that we fund,  --  we just

         11  released an RFP of prevention, and RFP soliciting

         12  work from agencies to address this.  But many of the

         13  City's agencies do employ those interventions that

         14  are specifically targeted to a wide range of people.

         15

         16                 We certainly understand that one size

         17  does not fit all.  Especially when it comes to doing

         18  prevention work.  That you need very specifically

         19  targeted, culturally appropriate, age appropriate

         20  focused interventions.  And so does the CDC.  They

         21  recognize that as well.  And so we are working in

         22  collaboration with them.  We're working in

         23  collaboration with the State.  The State also funds

         24  these prevention activities in the City to employ

         25  those methodologies and those interventions.
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          2                 Just one last question, then Council

          3  Member Vacca has a question.  Actually, I just

          4  wanted to ask if we can get a copy of the CHAIN

          5  study, you know, provide it to the Council?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: We will

          7  do that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay.  Thank you.

          9    Council Member Vacca.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Thank you

         11  Council Member Rivera.

         12                 One question I had, is that in this

         13  age group, what percentage do not have health care

         14  coverage?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: I don't

         16  know the answer to that.  It's not something that is

         17  normally collected on our CHAIN study.  We do ask

         18  about questions about barriers to care in general,

         19  and we'd be happy   --  and also about income  --

         20  so we'd be happy to share that data with you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Would you?  You

         22  know why I say that?  I notice we're talking about

         23  immigrants and we're talking about people who have

         24  mental health needs as well as physical health

         25  needs.  I think that inherent in that discussion has
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          2  to be who has health coverage and who does not.

          3  What can we do to provide health coverage to those

          4  who don't have it?  Because without health coverage,

          5  I think it's an impediment for people who need help,

          6  seeking it.  And of course, getting it  And what can

          7  we, as a City, do to fill those gaps?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: I think

          9  that's a very good observation.  Fortunately, in the

         10  City, people living with AIDS, who have an AIDS

         11  diagnosis, or are in some cases, are symptomatic for

         12  HIV infection, have access to the provision of

         13  medical care.  Also, Medicaid provides that as well.

         14    Most of the people that are involved in the study

         15  that we've referenced here, I think, fall into that

         16  category.  So as someone ages, and someone's medical

         17  needs grow, and if their infection grows to a point

         18  where they need access to medication, so they need

         19  access to outpatient medical care, or they need

         20  access to a number of services, we have a range of

         21  services that, when people meet specific eligibility

         22  requirements, are available to them.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: In the

         24  immigrant community, many people may not want to

         25  talk about this, and may not want to come forth.  So
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          2  there has to be an outreach to enroll them in health

          3  care.  I would think.  And those who may not have

          4  AIDS, but who may have HIV issues, who require

          5  counseling, I think we have to encourage them to get

          6  mental health counseling, should they have

          7  difficulty with depression.  And related issues.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEISFUSE: That is

          9  an issue that's addressed through our Ryan White

         10  funded programs.  And it has also been a major

         11  effort on the part of the Commissioner to enroll

         12  people into programs that they're eligible for.

         13  That do provide treatment and care services.

         14                 MR. PARK: Also, depression is one of

         15  the ten hallmarks of  --  depression screening and

         16  treatment  --  one of the ten hallmarks of Take Care

         17  New York, that was talked about earlier.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ARROYO: We're about to

         19  let you get off the hot seat.  Although it's not

         20  very hot today.  I think we can agree that this is

         21  an issue of very serious concern to all of us. We,

         22  as a Council, and you, as the individuals who are

         23  out there taking care of the public's health, that

         24  we begin a dialogue and continue to have a

         25  conversation about developing a specific, targeted

                                                            54

          1  COMMITTEES ON AGING, HEALTH AND SENIOR CENTERS

          2  program for the age group that we're discussing here

          3  today, around prevention and education.  That takes

          4  into consideration the nuances of the population

          5  that we're discussing. I don't think we can miss any

          6  opportunity here to intervene and impact in a

          7  positive way, the health of those New Yorkers who

          8  are aging.  And there are many of us.  I think all

          9  of us in this room are knocking on the door and some

         10  have already crossed the threshold.  I think it's

         11  important that we have an honest conversation, and

         12  have a very realistic goal in mind about how we're

         13  going to get this information out, get individuals

         14  tested, identify their status, and link them to

         15  appropriate care, so that we minimize the concurrent

         16  diagnosis, so that if we identify their HIV, they're

         17  also diagnosed with full- blown AIDS.  And we miss

         18  opportunity to impact and minimize the effect of

         19  this horrible disease on someone's life.

         20                 I for one, as Chair of the Committee

         21  on Aging, will continue to work and motivate DFTA to

         22  do the same, and I trust that my colleague, the

         23  Chair of the Committee on Health, will do the same

         24  with the Department of Health.  This is not

         25  something that could be done by any one of the two
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          2  agencies.  It has to be done in collaboration.  And

          3  we're here to be supportive.  I expect that we will

          4  involve our advocates in this field, who will help

          5  us design a program that's going to make sense for

          6  everyone.  Thank you for your testimony.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Gentlemen, thank

          8  you very much for joining us here today.

          9                 All right, the next panel will

         10  consist of Dennis DeLeon, from the Latino Commission

         11  on Aids; and Borris Powell, from the Gay Men of

         12  African Descent Organization; and Daniel Tietz,  --

         13  I apologize if I massacred the last name  --  from

         14  ACRIA.  Or a representative from ACRIA.  There you

         15  go.  These pillars.  I know that Dennis has another

         16  appointment to go to, so we're going to ask that he

         17  starts off.  All right Dennis.  You may begin.

         18                 MR. DE LEON: I was kind of struck by

         19   --  I hope  -- my name is Dennis DeLeon.  I'm the

         20  President, Latino Commission on AIDS.  I hope you

         21  were listening carefully to what the Department of

         22  Health said in terms of programs.  Because their

         23  responses to you were really saying that we have

         24  programs that include people over 50.  Not that they

         25  had programs targeting people of an age of 50 and
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          2  above.  So that to me was very telling.  If I've

          3  learned anything in this epidemic, it's that we need

          4  to target appropriate messages for appropriate  --

          5  for certain audiences.  And certainly, seniors over

          6  65, over 60 are in that group.  It would be a very

          7  different message I think for the sexually active 50

          8  to 60 year old.

          9                 But let me share some data so the

         10  scope of the problem is clearer.  Since 1981, AIDS

         11  has been seen as a young person's disease, with a

         12  prevention focus on young people, especially young

         13  sexually active gay men.  At that time, and up until

         14  fairly recently, we did not see many older people

         15  with the virus, because most people died before

         16  reaching 50.  With the advent of new treatments, in

         17  1996, the number of persons over 50 living with the

         18  virus continues to grow.  I am a person who is 57,

         19  living with the virus, and I would not be alive

         20  today if it wasn't for the new treatments.

         21                 Today, 31 percent of the population

         22  living with HIV is over 50, among men.  Of women

         23  living with HIV/AIDS, 23 percent are over 50.  These

         24  figures are for 2004, because the Department has not

         25  issued an annual surveillance report since 2004.
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          2  The majority of these women are Black or Hispanic.

          3  Overwhelmingly.  So the profile of female HIV and

          4  AIDS cases is overwhelmingly Hispanic and African-

          5  American.  For men, 31 percent are African-

          6  American, 21 percent Latino, and 21 percent White.

          7                 These numbers can only be expected to

          8  grow.  With longer lifespans, we can expect to see

          9  increases in persons over 60 living with HIV/AIDS

         10  growing from its current level of 7.8 percent for

         11  women, and 4.7 percent for  --  I'm sorry.  It's 7.8

         12  percent for men, and 4.7 percent for women.  The

         13  simple reason is that older people do not stop

         14  having sex.  And there will be more partners who are

         15  HIV infected and don't know it.

         16                 The point being, that as this

         17  population ages, you're going to have more risks in

         18  the senior population interacting with other

         19  seniors.  So by definition, the risk is going to

         20  grow beyond what it is right now.

         21                 I want to speak about medical

         22  treatment.  Because I believe that as the Committee

         23  was talking about it, it's hard enough growing old

         24  in this society in terms of housing and access to

         25  care, the cost of prescriptions, and mental health
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          2  needs.  But overlay on top of this, a disease that

          3  is likely to accelerate the aging process.  Some of

          4  the illnesses caused by medications we depend on to

          5  keep alive, diseases like cardiovascular diseases,

          6  diabetes, high blood pressure, exacerbated liver

          7  conditions.  Some of these diseases exist in seniors

          8  more than in younger people, but they're exacerbated

          9  by the medications that we're taking for HIV to stay

         10  alive.  The medications actually heighten the risk

         11  of these diseases.

         12                 I anticipate an acceleration of all

         13  the side effect illnesses that make life so

         14  difficult.  And keep in mind, I am an informed

         15  consumer, with excellent medical care, a good

         16  income, and not facing any immigration issues.

         17                 But what about prevention?  In 2004,

         18  17 percent of the new infections were over 50.  But

         19  what prevention programs are targeted to my age

         20  group?  And older?  Although the Department

         21  testified that they had 17 or 14 programs, once

         22  again, he was saying that they had programs that

         23  have a certain percentage of this age group within

         24  them.  I know that there have been some heroes in

         25  the community, in the Latino community especially.
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          2  Soleca (phonetic) in the Hispanic/Puerto Rican

          3  elderly organization.  Soleca has been a pioneer in

          4  teaching HIV issues and in all of our senior

          5  centers, and I don't think she's gone as far as put

          6  a bowl of condos (sic) out, but she has been  --

          7  she has not received a penny in funding for this

          8  issue.  Instead, we're creating new organizations to

          9  reach this population.  Which seems to me not sound.

         10    When we have some many really excellent senior

         11  organizations that are already have the trust of the

         12  senior population, who better to carry the message

         13  and to kind of carry the teachings into the senior

         14  centers, into the community than those

         15  organizations.

         16                 We have a program that the City

         17  Council has funded called  --  it's the  --  we call

         18  it the Kena Religious Leadership Project, where we

         19  team up 26 faith communities with CBOs, and many of

         20  the people who attend the church, those churches,

         21  are seniors. So we found ourselves having to come up

         22  with a curriculum that we used specifically for

         23  seniors.  And it is a very difficult topic to raise,

         24  which is absolutely true.

         25                 But what is needed?  We need housing
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          2  for seniors with HIV and AIDS.  Specifically for

          3  seniors with HIV and AIDS. Housing is the beginning

          4  of treatment.  Seniors like to be with people their

          5  own age.  How much of the City's housing dollars for

          6  persons with AIDS has been spent on housing that

          7  does not isolate the seniors from the necessary

          8  social environment?  What are seniors options in a

          9  City with dramatic rent increases every year? And

         10  what about immigrant seniors?  What housing

         11  possibilities are available for them?  I would

         12  venture to say very few, especially those that are

         13  not here legally.

         14                 Prevention.  I know SAGE does a great

         15  job, and I've been following their work within the

         16  gay community for years.  But I really believe that

         17  there's a tremendous need to enlist the existing

         18  organizations that serve seniors to carry this

         19  message to the organizations, to the seniors for

         20  prevention.  And your questions about when was the

         21  last time you talked about HIV and AIDS in senior

         22  centers, I think was kind of  --  I'll be kind.  A

         23  soft answer.  And when was the last course offered?

         24  You know, it's been over a year.  It's one course,

         25  one time.  You know, so I just think there's a lot
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          2  more the City can be doing in the field of

          3  prevention and helping people to understand that.

          4                 Medical care.  Most doctors who

          5  specialize in HIV care have little familiarity with

          6  gerontology.  The one person I've talked to about

          7  this is Dr. Raphael Antigua, up at Columbia.  And he

          8  tells me that it really  --  you really need to

          9  understand both fields to be able to differentiate

         10  where the HIV begins and ends, and where the simple

         11  aging process starts.  He is my expert on aging and

         12  HIV and AIDS.

         13                 The efforts to currently address

         14  those needs of senior are ad hoc.  They cannot

         15  continue to be ad hoc, though.  We need to empower

         16  the organizations that are currently serving

         17  seniors.  We need to kind of show  --  let's face

         18  it.  You know, without funding, these programs are

         19  going to be stretched in offering these additional

         20  services.  The fact that we don't have testing day,

         21  for example.  HIV testing day.  In most senior

         22  centers.  It's shocking to me.  Because I do believe

         23  that if it's done properly, many seniors would be

         24  tested.  And that's the key to beginning care.

         25  Thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

          3  much Dennis. Next.

          4                 MR. TIETZ: Hi.  Thank you for

          5  inviting me.  I'm Dan Tietz.  I'm the Executive

          6  Director of the Aids Community Research Initiative

          7  of American, known as ACRIA.  Four years ago, ACRIA

          8  saw the need for research on the growing number of

          9  people in New York City who are both HIV positive

         10  and over the age of 50.  Today, as you've heard here

         11  already, that age group accounts for 30 percent of

         12  the almost 100,000 persons living with HIV in New

         13  York City, and 70 percent of all people with HIV in

         14  New York City are over age 40.

         15                 At the time that ACRIA first began to

         16  look at the aging HIV population, advocacy and

         17  research efforts on their behalf had been limited.

         18  What research there was has often been done on small

         19  samples that consisted largely of White gay males.

         20  Because ACRIA had long had a relationship with trust

         21  with over 100 AIDS service organizations and CBOs,

         22  and medical care facilities in New York City, it was

         23  uniquely positioned to collect data on a large

         24  sample that truly represented today's HIV

         25  epidemiology.
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          2                 In 2003, ACRIA  conducted an initial

          3  study of older HIV positive adults, and those data

          4  are now published in peer review journals.  Initial

          5  findings led ACRIA to launch the Research on Older

          6  Adults with HIV, which we call ROAH, the largest

          7  study conducted today on the aging HIV population.

          8  The study, begun in mid 2005, and completed as of

          9  this January, collected data from 1,000 HIV positive

         10  people in New York City.  The funding was provided

         11  by ACRIA alone.  Foundation, federal, State, and

         12  City entities were approached, but refused support.

         13  A research advisory team was assembled that included

         14  prominent researchers, consumers, and New York City

         15  Department of Health staff.  The team was chaired by

         16  a prestigious researcher on aging, Marjorie Cantor.

         17  She's the Professor Emerita and Brookdale Scholar at

         18  Fordham University School of Social Work, who

         19  conducted the seminal study "Growing Older in New

         20  York in the 1990s".  And here attached to what you

         21  have is a short overview of our preliminary data

         22  analysis.

         23                 The ROAH effort is historic both for

         24  its size and comprehensiveness.  ROAH is an effort

         25  to be preemptive, to define a problem that can be
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          2  addressed now, before it emerges as a crisis. It

          3  gives a presence in a loud voice to this large group

          4  of people who have until now have been largely

          5  invisible and unheard.

          6                 ROAH assessed the basic demographics,

          7  health status, depression levels, substance use,

          8  sexual behaviors, stigma, social networks, quality

          9  of life, loneliness, and spirituality.  We wanted to

         10  know who these people are.  We believe that ACRIA's

         11  efforts have made significant strides in that

         12  direction, and the ROAH begins to define the real

         13  needs of these older adults.

         14                 The New York City Department of

         15  Health and Mental Hygiene is quoted in a Kaisernet

         16  report as saying, "...DOH has shifted from primarily

         17  serving the terminally ill, to serving HIV positive

         18  individuals who are living longer, and presenting

         19  more complex needs.".  What are those complex needs?

         20    As confirmed by ACRIA's research, they include the

         21  impact of the co- morbidities of aging, increased

         22  isolation from social support networks, and the

         23  negative impact of the HIV stigma and ageism.

         24                 What will the results of the

         25  interaction of having HIV with the common ailments
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          2  of aging, such as cardiovascular disease,

          3  osteoporosis, diabetes, and dementia?  What will HIV

          4  patients  --  How will HIV patients manage their

          5  inevitably increased reliance on medications to

          6  manage their health?  Are there interactions between

          7  the drugs used to treat these other conditions and

          8  the antiretrovirals prescribed for HIV?

          9                 Let me just answer those questions

         10  for a little bit. The obvious answer there is yes.

         11  And we may do a study, if we can find funding

         12  shortly, with at least one HHC facility on  --  and

         13  do some drug clinical trials on some of the

         14  antiretrovirals that are in use now, because we

         15  strongly suspect that the impact on seniors

         16  particularly hepatic impact, is quite different than

         17  it is for younger people.  Just a sort of digression

         18  on that.

         19                 You know, our livers function best at

         20  age seven or eight.  And it's all downhill from

         21  there.  And it's downhill faster, depending on what

         22  you do to yourself.  You know, drinking for example.

         23    Will make that situation happen a whole lot more

         24  quickly.  So certainly by the time you get into your

         25  late 50s, into your 60s, there is some strong
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          2  suspicion that function has a real impact on what

          3  happens in terms of taking HIV meds.  And right now,

          4  we do clinical trials  --  ACRIA has done clinical

          5  trials, drug clinical trials for 15 years.  And the

          6  bulk of the meds on the market now, we've studied.

          7  And we've provided the access to communities that

          8  would not otherwise have access to drug clinical

          9  trials.

         10                 You know, unfortunately, most of

         11  those are confined, if you will, to the 18 to 55

         12  crowd.  But above that, there's not actually  --

         13  there's not much study of what happens with older

         14  adults and the meds.  And there's not much study of

         15  happens to older adults and the meds mixed with

         16  other meds, that older adults take.  And so, there

         17  is certainly work that needs to be done there. We're

         18  looking for some funding from big pharma.  We'll see

         19  what happens, but we would like to do this trial

         20  with Jacobi and others.

         21                 Aging is not solely a medical issue.

         22  It is a process where social networks, family,

         23  friends, and community support systems are

         24  essential.  The success of anti- HIV drugs is

         25  evident.  In the past ten years, the diagnosis of
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          2  HIV or AIDS has evolved from a death sentence to a

          3  condition that holds the hope of a long life.  Who

          4  would have thought that a decade ago, we would have

          5  large numbers of seniors living with HIV?

          6                 And I appreciate the earlier comments

          7  on you know, certainly there is an issue here about

          8  new infections in older adults, by sexual

          9  interaction.  Certainly among older adults.  But

         10  honestly, I think the larger number is growing into

         11  it.  So you know, if you were 35 in 1990, and became

         12  infected today, you're 51, If you know, through

         13  treatments, if you've lived that long.  I think it's

         14  much more like you are seeing this number increase

         15  because people are just doing better with treatment.

         16

         17                 The results of our research are

         18  enormous, and we continue to analyze the data, a

         19  Herculean task, given limited resources.  Here are

         20  some of our key findings.  Our sample, by the way,

         21  is 80 percent people of color, and 32 percent women.

         22    And it looks a good deal like the epidemic in New

         23  York City.  I say it for the age.  Let me just

         24  mention that.

         25                 The older adults in ROAH have been
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          2  living with HIV for an average of 13 years.  They

          3  range from three months to 26 years since diagnosis.

          4                 Half have an AIDS diagnosis, while

          5  only 13 percent have CD4 levels below 200.  Again,

          6  the extraordinary success of current medications is

          7  clear.

          8                 Although many attend religious

          9  services, overall, some 56 percent, say they do not

         10  receive support from their place of worship.  Mostly

         11  because of real or perceived negative attitudes

         12  toward people with HIV.  In other words, stigma.

         13                 And 67 percent self identify as

         14  heterosexual, nine percent as bisexual, and 24

         15  percent as homosexual.  And that is increasingly

         16  what the epidemic looks like.  It's a little heavier

         17  on the heterosexual side than you might otherwise

         18  see in New York City, but it's close.

         19                 Nearly half of male participants, and

         20  30 percent of the females report having been

         21  incarcerated at some point in their lives.

         22                 A substantial portion of the ROAH

         23  participants live alone.  Seventy percent.  That

         24  number is twice what it is for other older adults of

         25  the same age in New York City.  We're not entirely
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          2  certain why that number is so large.  We think

          3  there's something about New York City housing that

          4  has driven that.  But it's a big number that really

          5  requires much further study.

          6                 About 85 percent of participants

          7  utilize government funded health assistance.

          8  Medicare.  Medicaid.  ADAP.  That's not surprising.

          9  That's where most people that had HIV long enough

         10  will end up.

         11                 Nearly 85 percent are currently on

         12  antiretroviral treatment.  Now I should just add a

         13  word of caution there. Certainly there, but also

         14  with regard to some of the other findings.  We got

         15  these folks from ASO, from community- based

         16  organizations.  From clinics.  So by definition,

         17  they are hooked to something another, if only

         18  lightly hooked.  And it would be  --  I appreciate

         19  that Council Member Vacca's question earlier about

         20  immigrants.  Certainly illegal immigrants.  Well,

         21  they're not likely to be so hooked to organizations.

         22    Hence, they're not going to be so likely as to

         23  show up on a study like this.  It would take some

         24  other effort, which I think we're certainly willing

         25  to do, to go find if you will, the rest of the
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          2  epidemic in New York City. But this is, because of

          3  our long relationships through our treatment

          4  education and health literacy program, you know, we

          5  have lots of contact with lots of organizations in

          6  all five boroughs, that again, you know, people who

          7  are concerned about their immigration status don't

          8  tend to go to many places.

          9                 Where was I?  Oh.  Most patients

         10  receive care in public hospitals or clinics or the

         11  ASOs.  Three quarters.  There are no apparent

         12  disparities in access to treatment among the major

         13  ethnic groups, or between males and females.  You

         14  know, that's the same word of caution.  So there

         15  too, you know, who we were talking to and where we

         16  got them from.

         17                 Heterosexual sex emerges as the

         18  current dominant mode of transmission.  For this

         19  population.  For those who tested positive within

         20  the last five years, 61 report vaginal sex as the

         21  mode of transmission.  Compared to 32 percent among

         22  those who tested positive more than ten years ago.

         23  So that just indicates the shift from gay men, men

         24  having sex with men, to heterosexual transmission.

         25                 The most commonly reported illnesses
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          2  other than HIV are depression.  Fifty- two percent.

          3  It's just an astonishing number.  That approaches

          4  three times the rate for other New Yorkers.

          5  Arthritis, 31 percent; hepatitis, 31 percent;

          6  neuropathy, 30 percent; and hypertension, 27

          7  percent.

          8                 Current reported use of illicit drugs

          9  includes marijuana, about a quarter; crack, 16

         10  percent; and cocaine, 15 percent; and heroin at

         11  seven percent.  So again, we were looking at a

         12  population which is akin to New York City's you

         13  know, other HIV population.  We went to all kinds of

         14  organizations to get these folks.  And so the

         15  substance use looks like what you'd expect.

         16                 More than half of the ROAH

         17  participants who use alcohol or illicit drugs are

         18  now in recovery.  In this sample.

         19  Over one third of the entire sample continues to use

         20  illicit substances or alcohol, and more than one

         21  half continue to smoke.

         22                 ROAH demonstrates that aging HIV

         23  positive adults experience significant levels of

         24  depression at a rate almost  -- I'm sorry, I said

         25  two times.  I meant 13 times higher than the general
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          2  New York City population.  It's really  --  I think

          3  it's a big issue.

          4                 Almost 17 percent of the sexually

          5  active study participants report having had

          6  unprotected sex with a person of unknown status.

          7  Now we should just be clear.  Half the population in

          8  this study had not reported sexual activity in the

          9  previous three months.  For the half who did report

         10  sexual activity, almost one in five had had, at

         11  least at one point in that two month period,

         12  unprotected sex with either someone they knew to be

         13  HIV negative, or someone whose status they did not

         14  know  And that number appears to run  --  you guys

         15  correct me if I'm wrong  --  I think that's three

         16  times kind of what we otherwise know.  I think it

         17  runs around six percent when this has been surveyed

         18  in other populations.  And you know, call this my

         19  old mental health nurse mindset, but I swear that

         20  the depression number and that number are related.

         21                 The critical role of social networks

         22  is illustrated by the impact of informal caregiving

         23  on the health care system. Approximately 44 million

         24  Americans currently provide caregiving assistance to

         25  family members or friends.  If the informal
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          2  caregiving provided by family, friends, and

          3  neighbors were replaced by formal paid caregivers,

          4  the cost will exceed $300 billion annually.  That's

          5  an AARP number that was recently put out.  While

          6  significant resources have been expended on

          7  understanding HIV/AIDS and its impact on

          8  individuals, groups, society, and health care

          9  delivery, little research has examined how HIV/AIDS

         10  affects the ability of older adults to maintain

         11  their social networks.

         12                 As was the case with ACRIA's earlier

         13  study, ROAH shows that HIV positive older adults

         14  lack family and community support systems that can

         15  provide the caregiving they will need as they age.

         16  They are likely to rely upon their friends, half of

         17  whom are also HIV positive.  So again, remembering

         18  that the 70 percent live alone.  That's again, twice

         19    as large similarly aged general population in New

         20  York City.

         21                 Stigma is a powerful element in the

         22  lives of older adults.  It causes them to become

         23  isolated and fearful of seeking out needed care.  It

         24  prevents them from engaging their biological

         25  families and reaching out to their religious

                                                            74

          1  COMMITTEES ON AGING, HEALTH AND SENIOR CENTERS

          2  institutions or community services.  We strongly

          3  suspect that better than half,  -- we said they said

          4  they don't see their church as supportive  --  in

          5  fair part, they don't feel comfortable enough to

          6  tell them.  So who they go to church with may not

          7  know that they have HIV.

          8                 Fewer than half of ROAH study

          9  participants have told all of their family members

         10  of their HIV status.  And only one third have told

         11  all of their friends.

         12                 The HIV care and services system has

         13  enable people with HIV to live into their 60s and

         14  beyond.  But can that same system handle the weight

         15  of its own success?  The challenge is no longer

         16  keeping death at arm's length for those who are

         17  engaged in treatment.  But developing new strategies

         18  for how best to live with the virus for entire

         19  lifespan.

         20                 The urgency that once surrounded the

         21  HIV epidemic in the United States brought us the

         22  Ryan White Comprehensive AIDS Resources Emergency

         23  Act, the CARE Act.  The Housing Opportunity for

         24  People with AIDS Act, and other public and private

         25  resources.  But the HIV care and service system is
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          2  no longer responding to the same sort of emergency.

          3  This care and services system is an indispensable

          4  part of the lives of tens of thousands of New

          5  Yorkers aging with HIV, a group that will get larger

          6  every day that passes without a cure.

          7                 As we enter the second quarter

          8  century of this epidemic, we know that

          9  antiretroviral drugs have brought down death rate,

         10  but the virus has not been eradicated.  In fact, the

         11  epidemic is growing and aging.  And our research

         12  suggests that many in the growing ranks of older

         13  adults with HIV will find themselves totally

         14  dependent on an already frayed care and service

         15  safety net.  We urge timely action to preserve and

         16  expand that safety net to meet the needs of older

         17  adults with HIV.  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Yes, please

         19  proceed.  I'd like to first mention that we're

         20  joined by Helen Foster, from the Bronx, and Yvette

         21  Clark, from Brooklyn.

         22                 MR. POWELL: Thank you.  My name is

         23  Borris Powell, and I'm here representing Gay Men of

         24  African Descent, a community based organization

         25  located in Harlem.  And I simply want to say that
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          2  I'm honored to be here.  As a boy that grew up in

          3  public housing, it's actually a privilege to speak

          4  at a public hearing. That's public housing in

          5  Chicago.  I'm a country boy.

          6                 Founded in 1986, by the Reverend

          7  Charles Angel, a Pentecostal preacher, Gay Men of

          8  African Descent exists to empower gay men of African

          9  Descent which includes Continental Africans and

         10  Caribbean immigrants, through education, advocacy,

         11  health and wellness promotion, and social support.

         12  We continue to provide services congruent with our

         13  mission, and it is our mission not to overlook our

         14  seniors.  And those men amongst us that we consider

         15  to be seniors, those are men in their 50s and above.

         16    These men have lost entire circles of friends, and

         17  these men often suffer from isolation and

         18  depression, and are frequently confused and

         19  disappointed by their treatment in a community which

         20  values youth.

         21                 The isolation that we speak of, often

         22  encompasses being isolated from the Black community

         23  and from the mainstream gay community.

         24                 These issues are exacerbated by HIV

         25  diagnoses. Perceptions, sometimes perpetuated by
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          2  medical staff, lead to deprioritization of HIV

          3  testing, and subsequent treatment for these men.  It

          4  is also our belief that there is a trend across the

          5  country that is moving HIV rapid testing from

          6  community- based organizations to larger hospitals,

          7  which creates and even larger problem, because many

          8  of the men that we represent and the men that we've

          9  served, are not receiving general health care  So

         10  when HIV testing is moved from their community to

         11  larger hospitals, they won't be tested there either.

         12

         13                 A belief that older adults,

         14  particularly gay men, and those who do not benefit

         15  from the institution of marriage, are not at risk,

         16  as it is assumed that they're not having sex.  It's

         17  been established that people over 50 are still

         18  having sex.  I heard that while I was sitting here,

         19  so I'll move on.

         20                 According to the most recent figures

         21  published by the New York City Department of Health,

         22  approximately 16 percent of those newly diagnosed

         23  with AIDS and HIV in the first half of 2002, had

         24  passed their 50th birthdays.   This perception also

         25  translates into a reluctance to test, as in gay men

                                                            78

          1  COMMITTEES ON AGING, HEALTH AND SENIOR CENTERS

          2  in our community, they believe that the perception

          3  is that they should know better, or they should have

          4  access to prevention information or that they should

          5  have had access to condoms.

          6                 Additionally, unlike clinical

          7  settings dedicated exclusively to serving the

          8  complex needs of the young men in our community, men

          9  over 50 with HIV have no such service available.

         10  They are often forced to choose between confiding in

         11  Managed Care professionals, who shuttle them from

         12  place to place in an attempt to address their

         13  medical needs.  And those ailments often include

         14  hypertension, heart disease, decreased mobility,

         15  prostate and other forms of cancer, and these men

         16  often remain silent.

         17                 The other diseases that we hear about

         18  regularly in our community are dialysis, diabetes,

         19  and people are seeking not only medications for

         20  those, but it is often their story that managing

         21  those diseases, they don't wish to complicate

         22  medical regimens with an additional HIV regimen, so

         23  there's some resistance to treatment.

         24            GMAD has four priority areas of focus

         25  around HIV and aging, based on what concerns are
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          2  reported by our seniors, which again, are men 50 and

          3  over.

          4                 Increased testing opportunities.

          5  Provided by professionals in a manner that is

          6  culturally relevant and respectful.  I've heard a

          7  considerable amount of dialogue today about peer-

          8  based programs.  We're one of the organizations that

          9  are gifted to have a senior offering HIV rapid

         10  testing to seniors in our community.

         11                 We also seek provision, or believe

         12  that a program that provides support for seniors to

         13  increase access and maintenance and health care.

         14  One of our programs, and something that we believe

         15  would benefit the City at large, is that seniors

         16  that can afford Internet services, when they're

         17  provided with computer access, it allows them to

         18  store medical documents online, and that's a very

         19  easy way for them to keep track of them.  Their

         20  medical documents.  It also allows them to receive

         21  reminders about medical appointments reminders, of

         22  medication, and it's an easy way for us to track not

         23  only our seniors, but to count referrals.

         24                 We believe in peer- based escorts to

         25  and from appointments, and we just call these
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          2  friendly visits. In addition to that, many seniors,

          3  when hospitalized, don't receive visitors, and seek

          4  to simply leave the hospital setting and return to

          5  whatever their normal lives were.  So peer- based

          6  education that includes not only testing, but can

          7  provide friendly visits.

          8                 We also believe that programming that

          9  addresses mental issues, which include isolation and

         10  depression.  There was a report on Good Morning

         11  America yesterday that said 25 percent of New

         12  Yorkers suffer from loneliness.  We believe that's

         13  exacerbated and increased with age.

         14                 We also seek to request that there be

         15  an increase in social and cultural activities that

         16  involve multiple generations of Black men.  One of

         17  our most successful programs are inter generational

         18  programming.  We hear from both younger gay men and

         19  older gay that the duplicity of isolation in their

         20  lives is the same.  So we create programming that

         21  includes testing, that connects generations of Black

         22  men that are separated from the main institutions of

         23  America, which are church, family and educational

         24  institutions.  So by recreating those among gay men,

         25  we find that it normalizes HIV testing, and results
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          2  in a higher testing rate across all generations of

          3  Black men.  Thank you for this hearing. And we'll

          4  continue to do our work to save the lives of New

          5  Yorkers.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Gentlemen, thank

          7  you very much for coming.  We just have a couple of

          8  brief questions.  And first and foremost, I want to

          9  thank you for the fine work that you're doing

         10  advocating on behalf of this community.

         11                 One of my first questions is, you

         12  know, we spoke about the fact that there's obviously

         13  not that much training going on for the adult

         14  population in terms of going out to the DFTA and the

         15  Department of Health.  What can we do as a City

         16  Council to make sure that we stay on top of this

         17  issue?  I know my colleague you know, the Co- Chair

         18  over here, you know, had a pretty decent good idea

         19  about maybe developing a task force or a working

         20  group to make sure that we stay on top of this.  But

         21  what are your insights?

         22                 Yes, Dennis.

         23                 MR. DE LEON: Personally, we have

         24  found  --  our main experience is working with

         25  churches where we find large numbers of seniors.
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          2  And we find that utilizing somebody from the church,

          3  who is known to the congregation is  --  and then

          4  training that person on how to educate seniors and

          5  other people in the congregation is a tremendous way

          6  to reach a very hard to reach population.

          7                 And I want to not  --  let us not go

          8   --  let us not ignore or understate the role of

          9  stigma.  Because you heard that the increased

         10  profile of those over 50 and over 60 with HIV were

         11  transmitted heterosexually.  But the perception is

         12  still very broad in the community that they were

         13  infected because of intravenous drug use or it's

         14  because they're gay.  So just take whatever stigma

         15  that is in the general public, and magnify it ten

         16  times.

         17                 MR. TIETZ: In terms of what the

         18  Council could do, I think the Council could play a

         19  role with oversight.  Oversight of the Department,

         20  and actually ask for a timeframe by which time the

         21  Department of Aging is going to have sessions.  I

         22  would actually ask  --  if I were asking the

         23  questions, I would ask the Department of Aging for

         24  all the presentations that have been given on HIV by

         25  the Department of Health over the past year in
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          2  senior centers.  And I would ask them what condom

          3  distribution efforts they've made.  I would ask them

          4  how many condoms have been sent to senior centers,

          5  or to senior- serving organizations.  I think that

          6  by just asking the questions, you're going to get

          7  the answers we think will be disappointing.

          8                 But I do believe that ultimately, we

          9  have to rely on our existing senior organizations.

         10  Because if they're not involved in this, if we go

         11  around creating new entities and new bodies to

         12  address this issue, we're really wasting the

         13  experience of existing groups.  So my strong

         14  recommendation is to rely upon those.

         15                 Our efforts in the churches are

         16  really about reducing stigma.  AIDS is not a

         17  punishment from God.  Bad people -  changing the

         18  view that only bad people get HIV and AIDS.

         19  Addressing some of those issues that serve to block

         20  people from seeing themselves as being at risk.

         21                 So that's my long- winded answer to

         22  your question.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay, and it's

         24  duly noted. Next.

         25                 MR. POWELL: A short answer.  My
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          2  request would be to support programming that

          3  reintegrates senior citizens into the mainstream

          4  communities.  We live in a society where youth is

          5  valued, and aging seems to be a human process that's

          6  devalued.  As New York supports multiple free

          7  programming, and cultural events throughout the

          8  City, the City Council has the ability to set aside

          9  some seeding transportation to free events and to

         10  add value to the lives of seniors.  Once we begin to

         11  see value being added to their lives, their interest

         12  in preserving their lives and testing increases.

         13                 MR. TEITZ: ACRIA already has a major

         14  treatment, education, and HIV health literacy

         15  program that has $300,000 in Ryan White funding

         16  until February.  The planning council last year

         17  reprioritized that money to something else, and so

         18  now we have no funding for treatment, education, and

         19  HIV health literacy.  Almost none really, from the

         20  City at all.  And you know, our staff is bilingual,

         21  almost all of them.  We have some educators who are

         22  over 50.  One of whom turned 50 recently.  We also

         23  are well- known for our publications.  We've got

         24  substantive quarterly publications, and substantive

         25  booklets, some of which the Council has paid for.
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          2  Council Member Arroyo and Council Member Quinn have

          3  each given to ACRIA to  --  for example, the Women

          4  in HIV publication.  So we've go in place everything

          5  that's needed to actually do this training. In fact,

          6  we've got in place the local technical and national

          7  technical assistance to in fact, train others, maybe

          8  even the DOH or Aging on how to do this.

          9                 So I'd say what's needed is in fact,

         10  some dedicated funding so that this valuable service

         11  isn't lost.  I should be very clear.  Ours is viewed

         12  as a model program, not just here, but across the

         13  country.  We have more requests than we can meet to

         14  do this training across the country.  And you know,

         15  without some dedicated resources, that will be

         16  impossible to maintain for a whole lot longer.

         17                 MR. DE LEON: We also were cut out of

         18  the treatment, education, and health literacy

         19  programs.  We had a  --  we go around the country to

         20  different cities, and we train providers who work

         21  with seniors and who work with other populations

         22  about treatment.  And we also train  --  there's

         23  also a need for training of people who aren't

         24  willing to 'fess up to their diagnosis.  And they

         25  think they're positive, but what's the point of
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          2  getting tested if I don't understand the

          3  medications?  They're afraid of the medications.

          4  There's a deep fear of the medications.  So they

          5  don't get tested.  And we believe that treatment

          6  education is very important for that reason.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: I know that

          8  Council Members Foster and Baez both put in

          9  initiatives for HIV outreach and the training and

         10  stuff like that.  So I'm wondering since you know,

         11  the Council's always been very supportive you know,

         12  of this type of education campaigns, and information

         13  campaigns.  If we can probably use some of the

         14  funding that we just allocated recently, we're going

         15  today, probably at midnight, but you know, hopefully

         16  we can use some of that funding  --

         17                 MR. POWELL: Ask me what time that

         18  was.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Who knows.  You

         20  know, it's City Council time, so it will be before

         21  July 1st.

         22                 But I'm pretty sure we could probably

         23  use some of that funding to you know, promote

         24  education campaigns for the older populations.

         25                 MR. DE LEON: We do in fact provide
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          2  treatment education to the seniors in the churches

          3  that we go to so that they understand that the

          4  treatment is better than not getting treated. That's

          5  a very important role that we play.  And we're only

          6  able to do it because of the City Council support.

          7  And it goes beyond the 26 faith communities that we

          8  serve.  Because it's all Spanish, first of all.  And

          9  it goes to  --  we have health education for  -- we

         10  bring together more churches for broader  --  and we

         11  provide health education to  --  but through the

         12  City Council's funding. Through the Council's

         13  funding.

         14                 MR. POWELL: And my final comment is

         15  the question of curriculums (sic) arose earlier, and

         16  our institutions at Gay Men of African Descent, the

         17  curriculums that we've been created  --  that we've

         18  created on stigma and discrimination have been

         19  approved by CDC for the African- American community

         20  at large.  They address issues of gender bi's,

         21  misogyny, HIV/AIDS discrimination, and include issue

         22  of aging.  We don't have funding to do that, so the

         23  usage of those curriculum right now is done through

         24  volunteers to our organization.  So increased

         25  funding to provide that across the City would be a
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          2  great thing.  And money to create new curriculum

          3  isn't an issue.  The curriculum exists.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Next we have

          5  questions from Council Member Stewart, Brewer, and

          6  then Helen Foster.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you Mr.

          8  Chair.

          9                 You know, as I was sitting here

         10  listening, a lot of questions came into my mind.

         11  And some of the questions come like, unless there

         12  are symptoms and signs, should every senior be

         13  tested? Should there be a preliminary screening?

         14  Should every senior be tested?

         15                 I'm considering the stigma.  Up to

         16  what age?  You know, those are the kind of things

         17  that came into my mind.  Because sometimes we think

         18  should everyone be tested?  Or should we really do a

         19  screening before we do testing?

         20                 MR. DE LEON: I think everyone should

         21  be tested.  I mean, if we don't test,  --  if we

         22  don't make testing a routine part of medical care,

         23  nothing brings that lesson home more than for women.

         24    Gay men and intravenous drug  --  persons who use

         25  drugs intravenously, kind of have the sense that
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          2  they're part of a risk group.  And they understand

          3  the need to get tested.  So that sometimes they

          4  present themselves for testing.  But the women often

          5  times do not see the risk.  And seniors, similarly,

          6  because of the heterosexual transmission, do not see

          7  the risk.

          8                 So if someone does not see the risk,

          9  unless you make the testing routine, as part of

         10  normal medical care, you're going to miss a lot of

         11  people.  I believe right now, just about all those

         12  cases of people concurrently being diagnosed with

         13  HIV and AIDS at the same time, meaning they found

         14  out they were HIV positive and developed AIDS, and

         15  have an AIDS defining condition, all speak to the

         16  fact that we need to make testing.  And that would

         17  help to destigmatize it.  I mean, if testing is

         18  really part of routine care, we really will help to

         19  destigmatize testing, which it's not now.

         20                 MR. POWELL: I might just add, without

         21  getting a position on Commissioner Frieden's

         22  proposals, in this regard, and I would think that we

         23  would agree, that it should be made more routine.  I

         24  think you know, just from the  --  I think there's

         25  some debate about the best approach for doing that,
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          2  but it absolutely should   --  but there's no reason

          3  not today to do this.  For that matter you knows,

          4  HHC now, I understand, does rapid HIV testing in all

          5  of its clinics.  So  --  and a very sweeping

          6  fashion.  So they do what they need to do to do you

          7  know, teaching you know, they meet the law's

          8  requirements today, and do rapid HIV testing.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Well it

         10  speaks to the point then.  Then you're saying that

         11  everyone should be tested.  But if everyone should

         12  be tested in that population, that everyone should

         13  be tested in the general population.

         14                 MR. POWELL, MR. TIETZ, and Mr. DE

         15  LEON: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: That's what

         17  you're saying.

         18                 MR. POWELL, MR. TIETZ, and MR. DE

         19  LEON: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

         21                 MR. DE LEON: The reluctance to get

         22  tested still exists, because it's not routine now.

         23  So we have to do some very good social marketing to

         24  encourage that testing.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I was kind of
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          2  hard pressed to know that if someone is 80 and

          3  they're not sexually active, if they should be

          4  tested.  That comes to mind.  It's very hard pressed

          5  for me to come to that point.

          6                 MR. DE LEON: They can always say no.

          7  A person can say I don't want to be tested.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right.  I

          9  understand they can say no, but just the policy of

         10  saying that everyone should be tested, I am not in

         11  too much of agreement with that, because  --

         12                 MR. DE LEON: Well due to the fact

         13  that a disease like HIV can gestate for a long time.

         14    I mean, I've been living with this disease since

         15  1981.  And it took me quite a while before I was

         16  able to  --  it takes a long time to show its face.

         17  And so you may be 80, but something you did in your

         18  60s is putting your health at risk.  In some people,

         19  the HIV virus progresses slowly, and in some people,

         20  it progresses very quickly.  So I believe that the

         21  testing, even of people at the age of 80, because

         22  you never know what they were doing in the 70s.  Or

         23  the 60s.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Then the

         25  question arise that after testing, what next?  The
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          2  fact is, let's assume someone was tested.   And they

          3  tested back when they were 60.  And it's negative.

          4  Now they may not be sexually active and at 70, why

          5  would you want to test them again?

          6                 MR. DE LEON: I mean, this is a whole

          7  conversation to have with your caregiver.

          8  Certainly, if you're  --  the caregiver goes through

          9  with you your history.  I think some of what was

         10  spoken about by the presenters earlier, about how to

         11  have a conversation about sex with older people.

         12  And in fact, some caregivers being uncomfortable

         13  with that.  I think you need to help caregivers have

         14  the conversations about the risk factors with

         15  everyone, and that will change depending on what you

         16  hear in reply. So you have this conversation, if

         17  you're a physician or a nurse or some other

         18  caregiver, you have this conversation with the

         19  person sitting in front of you, in private, about

         20  their history.  And assuming you've given them care

         21  for a long time, then you're going to know some

         22  stuff about them and about how they live.  So the

         23  point is a valid one, which is, it may turn out that

         24  they haven't done a thing in the last ten years that

         25  would put them at any greater risk.  And so maybe
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          2  you wouldn't want to test them today. The idea is

          3  this.  That it should be routinized (sic) to the

          4  degree that that conversation actually happens.  And

          5  we're suggesting it's not happening.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: That's why I

          7  said there should be some sort of preliminary

          8  screening than just to put them through that trauma.

          9                 MR. DE LEON: In terms of preliminary

         10  screening, I can guarantee you in a doctor's office,

         11  will not happen.  The less time a doctor can spend

         12  with you, given the increased demands on private

         13  insurance and Medicaid, the less time he can spend,

         14  the less time he will spend.  And when you add a

         15  requirement about screening, and you require

         16  screening, which can be a very lengthy process,

         17  because it could be a major conversation.  I believe

         18  that you will lose a lot of people.  You will miss a

         19  lot of people.

         20                 MR. POWELL: I believe the answer to

         21  the question lies in the history of AIDS.  The

         22  question is a phenomenal question.  Who should be

         23  tested?  The answer resides in the human need to

         24  explain ones self out of the equation of being at

         25  risk for HIV.  Living in a media- driven society,

                                                            94

          1  COMMITTEES ON AGING, HEALTH AND SENIOR CENTERS

          2  media told us, in the '80s, that it was a White gay

          3  mens' disease.  Black people explained themselves

          4  out of the equation of being at risk, and needing to

          5  test.  The numbers now tell us that that was wrong.

          6                 My concern with broader testing is

          7  that the safety nets that were put into effect to

          8  protect the psyche and the mental well being of

          9  White gay men, which we now know as pre and post

         10  test counseling, are being challenged right now,

         11  because the face of HIV and AIDS are Black and Brown

         12  men and women.  And it's being said that routinized

         13  testing should be in place, and everyone should be

         14  tested.  I believe routinized testing is important

         15  with a risk assessment.  If someone has not used

         16  needles for insulin, if someone has not had blood

         17  transfusion, if someone tested ten years ago and has

         18  not had sex, it doesn't make sense to test them and

         19  to spend that money.  It's not a good use of

         20  resources.

         21                 So there are some guidelines to

         22  increase the numbers of people testing.  And also to

         23  kind of get rid of the stigma that it's those people

         24  that should be tested.  And the result of doing that

         25  lies in the history of HIV and AIDS.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you.  I'm

          3  actually going to move on to the next questionnaire

          4  (sic) because we have a couple of Members that want

          5  to ask.  Council Member Brewer.  Then Council Member

          6  Foster.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

          8  much.  First of all, I think we should all thank

          9  Council Member Al Vann, Dennis, because he's the one

         10  that really focused on HIV education in the safe

         11  based communities.  So I just want to state that for

         12  the record.

         13                 Secondly, just in terms of insurance,

         14  obviously, this is the hidden gorilla out here in

         15  terms of what gets reimbursed.  I'm wondering if we

         16  were to do the testing, which I certainly think

         17  would make sense, because it would erase the stigma,

         18  which is so important.  My question is, have you

         19  discussed any of this with insurance companies?  Is

         20  that something that comes up?  And will insurance

         21  companies even pay for, as they should, material

         22  that is a prevention, the best possible prevention,

         23  and all the work that goes with the materials?

         24                 MR. TEITZ: Yes, there's no bar to  --

         25    insurance companies cover  --  this is a lab test.
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          2    They get covered.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.  And how

          4  about in terms of prevention?  Was that something

          5  that they would focus on?  I mean, the work that

          6  you're doing, it would seem to me  --

          7                 MR. TEITZ: No, not really.  If you're

          8     --  let's just say  --  all right  --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I know it's a

         10  tough sell. I'm just  --

         11                 MR. TEITZ: If you're a medicator,

         12  you've got other third party private insurance, and

         13  you're going to a hospital and they're going to do a

         14  rapid HIV test, it will bet billed.  You have

         15  coverage.  If you go to your private doctor's

         16  office, or your clinic, and you've got insurance,

         17  hand in your insurance card, they're going to bill

         18  for that and it's going to get paid.  If you're

         19  doing like the rapid testing  --  say the DOH is

         20  doing this at some location for whoever walks by and

         21  wants it kind of thing, well no.  Then you know,

         22  that's going to be some other source of funding.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.  Well

         24  thank you.

         25                 MR. TIETZ: I just wanted to correct
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          2  the misperception of what the Commissioner is

          3  proposing.  He's not proposing to do away with any

          4  kind conversations before someone gets tested.  He's

          5  proposing that HIV is explained, the fact that

          6  treatments are available, but a brief conversation.

          7  What he is insisting on is an extensive post- test

          8  counseling for people who are positive.  And

          9  extensive connections to medical care that is part

         10  of the law he wants to insert.  And we strongly

         11  support that. Because he also wants to put in the

         12  law that you counsel people who test negative on HIV

         13  prevention.  He wants that to be in the laws. And we

         14  strongly support that also.  It almost  --  it came

         15  close. It was introduced by Darryl Towns, and with

         16  Pete Rivera's support. And Adriano Espayatte'

         17  (phonetic) support  --  this was last session.  We

         18  hope it passes, gets passed next year.  Because I

         19  sincerely believe that if we rely upon our

         20  preconceptions of this disease, we will miss so many

         21  people.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.  One

         23  other comment, just in terms of my favorite topic,

         24  on technologies.  Solica is always the star of so

         25  many of her programs.  She has a wonderful -  in her
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          2  senior centers, computer training programs, and

          3  worms, and you know, done by hook and by crook, as

          4  she often does.  But it's fabulous.  So my question

          5  is, between OATs, and Senior Net and so on, there is

          6  more  --  it's a growing population going online

          7  this 50 plus age group.  So are you working in terms

          8  of that kind of information going out via some of

          9  these programs that are teaching online work?

         10  Because that's a way in which you can approach the

         11  topic and it's sort of part of the general

         12  discussion.

         13                 MR. POWELL: Most of the ACRIA's  --

         14  actually almost all of ACRIA's materials are online

         15  that health and teaching materials, but there's  --

         16  but we're now looking at preparing continuing

         17  education for licensed professionals.  And it would

         18  be --  it's a short step from there really, to

         19  having printed stuff to coming up with something

         20  that works in an online way for this community or

         21  other communities.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I just say

         23  that because there's a lot more focus now in the

         24  nonprofit sector of going to the centers, using

         25  computers where available, et cetera, et cetera.
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          2  There's a push to talk to your grandchildren via the

          3  net.  And so there's a different sense of how to use

          4  the technology that's out there.  Obviously,

          5  prescription drugs, just one part of it.

          6                 So I'm just saying, this is another

          7  place where when access is possible, it could be

          8  part of the discussion.  Because it hasn't been up

          9  to now.

         10                 MR. POWELL: We're doing some inter-

         11  generational programming where we utilizing homeless

         12  youths to train citizens to use the Internet, adding

         13  value to both of their lives.  It seems to be

         14  working.  It's a very interesting  --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And then it

         16  could possibly be part of the same discussion.  Just

         17  in health care.

         18                 MR. POWELL: In addition to the

         19  education for seniors, we found that there are a

         20  variety of clinical trials that happen in New York

         21  City.  So when we combine HIV education with other

         22  health information that seniors will be interested

         23  in, that helps to get rid of the stigma.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.  Thank

         25  you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: We've been joined

          3  by Council Member John Liu.  And Council Member

          4  Foster has the next question.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thank you.

          6  First let me apologize for being late.  My shoe

          7  broke on the way upstairs, so I had to run around

          8  the corner to get it fixed.

          9                 My question has to do with education.

         10    I know earlier this year, at my church, for Black

         11  Church Week, with AIDS, we had a conversation and

         12  they started talking about the increase of infection

         13  among the older population.  And surprisingly

         14  enough, myself and other young people were kind of

         15  grossed out with the thought that older people were

         16  having sex.  And while the older people  --  no,

         17  seriously.  While the older people in the

         18  congregation  --  and you know you never want to

         19  think of your parents, like you got here by

         20  immaculate  --  like it grosses you out.  So we were

         21  listening.  Whereas the older people in the

         22  congregation were nodding their heads.  So I think

         23  that's an excellent  --  like they got it.  I think

         24  the big thing was the stigma.

         25                 So my question is, how  --  and
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          2  interesting enough Joel, in the package that I put

          3  together in terms of that funding, it did not cross

          4  my mind until this hearing that this is a community,

          5  or a group that we need to target.  In your

          6  testimony, when you were saying that the

          7  advertisement  --  you're right. It's always for

          8  young people.  And that's really how I think of it.

          9  But going forward with this piece that the Council

         10  is proposing, what would you say is the best way, in

         11  addition to the faith based --  because I know that

         12  worked very well, and we started conversations in

         13  the church that I think years ago, you just would

         14  never have, in terms of HIV and sex, and all those

         15  things.  Other than that faith- based community,

         16  where else do you think we can get the education to

         17  not only the seniors, but people like myself who

         18  didn't even know that this was a population  --

         19  well, knew it was a population, but didn't focus on

         20  it?

         21                 MR. DE LEON: Well, you're talking

         22  about social marketing.  And social marketing,

         23  through things that seniors actually read, and

         24  programs they actually watch.  And it wouldn't be

         25  that big a list to  --  for example, some of the
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          2  money that we've been  --  we'd hoped to be

          3  provided, and I know that Council Member Vann wanted

          4  an enhancement this year, so we could do even more

          5  media advertising.  Because correcting the view that

          6  seniors are at risk, it's going to take a long time.

          7    It's going to take ads in subways.  It's going to

          8  take that kind of visibility.  And that's expensive.

          9    That's very expensive.  And the City is limited by

         10  its budget and it's priorities.  But that's a

         11  direction it has to go, because otherwise, you know,

         12  it's going to be missed.

         13                 And also I think senior centers

         14  cannot be stressed more.  Because not every senior

         15  goes to the senior centers. There's a lot of seniors

         16  who are isolated and don't participate. And I

         17  understand that.  But there are centers that do

         18  target African- American Latinos and White gay men,

         19  and I believe that we need to use those more.  And I

         20  would ask the guy who was here from the office,

         21  whatever it's called, the Office of the  --  the

         22  Department for the Aging, to  --  I would hold him

         23  accountable.  I would invite him back, and say, give

         24  me a list of where you've been.  Give me a list of

         25  where you've distributed condoms.  Give me a list of
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          2  all these things.  Because it was kind of vaguely

          3  worded, you know, and you can't be vague about this.

          4

          5                 MR. TIETZ: If I could just add, we

          6  got 1,000 older adults to talk to in enormous detail

          7  about their sex lives.  So it's entirely doable.

          8  And you know, the principle people doing it, I mean,

          9  two of them are here.  There are two principles

         10  investigators.  Dr. Carpiac (phonetic) and Andrew

         11  Shippey.  And three others.  And without offending

         12  anyone, Dr. Carpiac is over 50, but the rest of them

         13  I don't believe are.  And it's entirely doable.  I

         14  don't think there's as much  --  I mean, I think

         15  with a certain respect and manner, I don't think

         16  there's as much reticence to actually have the

         17  conversation as one might expect.

         18                 Additionally, I think there's great

         19  value, as resources remain a shrinking commodity in

         20  American Society for this type of work, to spread

         21  messages through social networks is something that

         22  doesn't require a great deal of resources.  Every

         23  senior that's ever come through our door had three

         24  or four friends that were less fortunate.  And to

         25  get messages and materials to them through those
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          2  social networks, we were able to do without a huge

          3  amount of resources.  So I depend on the old-

          4  fashioned way, each one tell one.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you.

          6  Unless any of my colleagues have any other

          7  questions, gentlemen, thank you very much for being

          8  here today.

          9                 Next we have Ed Shaw, from the New

         10  York Association of HIV over 50.  We're going to try

         11  to do this in one panel.  We have Kathleen Nokes,

         12  PhD., from the New York Association of HIV over 50

         13  as well; and Carol J. Hunt, from the Jamaica Service

         14  Program for Older Adults; and Solecka Cabrera, from

         15  the Institute of Faith for Puerto Rican Hispanic  --

         16                 And Council Member Recchia has joined

         17  us as well.

         18                 As always noted, the cultural czar.

         19                 Thank you very much.  Anybody can

         20  start the process.

         21                 MR. SHAW: Good afternoon Council

         22  Members.  It's fortuitous that my testimony should

         23  still have afternoon, since we were called earlier

         24  this morning.  I want to thank you for convening

         25  this very important hearing, and allowing me an
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          2  opportunity to address this very important topic.

          3  The comments this afternoon will focus on issues

          4  that are very near and dear to my heart  I'm a

          5  person that's been living with the virus now for the

          6  past eighteen years.

          7                 My concerns of older adults have been

          8  that they are out of sight and out of mind to many.

          9  And it's almost as if folks think that we're

         10  invisible, but we're not.  Quite the contrary. We're

         11  alive and well, with the fire still burning in our

         12  bellies. And as has been pointed out earlier today,

         13  with the sexual enhancers, certainly sex is alive

         14  and well in the older adult community.

         15                 I had an opportunity  --  and I'm

         16  just digressing from testimony for a minute  --  to

         17  do a Northeast focus group in senior centers a few

         18  years back, and some of the seniors, and they were

         19  as old as old, old, as old as 82 and 85, they said

         20  that they were still having sex.  So needless to

         21  say.

         22                 At the height of my professional

         23  career, some 18 years ago, I was diagnosed with HIV.

         24    And my knowledge on the subject then was nil.  And

         25  I walked off a job that had promise, and so much
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          2  more to me.  But because little information focused

          3  specifically on older adults, denial was my way of

          4  life for five years.  Five years and several

          5  hospitalizations later, the reality of living with

          6  HIV finally set in.

          7                 At the time, I had no health care

          8  coverage, because after I walked off the job, the

          9  health care coverage was dropped. I wandered in the

         10  wilderness, so to speak, and the attachment will

         11  allude to some other history of myself, and

         12  certainly, you'll find that very informative at a

         13  later point in time as you engage in that reading.

         14  As I pointed out, the additional testimony will

         15  allude to a number of different factors.  And also,

         16  I've attached several other personal perspectives

         17  from other individuals who have made the journey

         18  through the maze as well.  And it will certainly be

         19  enlightening to you to see the differences.  The

         20  details of their stories are different from mine,

         21  but their experiences are nevertheless very much

         22  like my own.  And notwithstanding all that has been

         23  said over the years, there are still few prevention

         24  messages that target middle- aged and older adults.

         25                 Upon my discharge from the hospital
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          2  in 1993, I began to ask some very serious questions

          3  about medications and what their side effects are.

          4  And the answers then, or the lack thereof, led me on

          5  a path of advocacy and activism.

          6                 I began to involve myself in planning

          7  council meetings, Jan Carl Park, who sat here

          8  earlier today is in the back of the room now, he was

          9  one of my earlier mentors when I sat on the planning

         10  council.  I became involved in that group, and I

         11  knew that the  --  I had to be at the table where

         12  the decisions were being made about the delivery of

         13  services in the perspective communities across the

         14  five boroughs.

         15                 Using my background also in

         16  counseling, from a professional perspective, I began

         17  to do peer- to- peer counseling, and I volunteered

         18  by services at one of the local hospitals, of which

         19  I'm still a volunteer counselor there.  And over the

         20  past ten years, I've had close to 10,000 hours of

         21  volunteer service here in the community.  Helping

         22  individuals like myself to navigate the system as it

         23  relates to the benefits, et cetera.

         24                 Over the past ten years, much effort

         25  has been given to address a multitude of relevant
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          2  issues, with little success.  My colleague will

          3  allude to a study that was done a few years back,

          4  and it was presented to the Prevention Planning

          5  Group, and no further action was taken after that.

          6  The fact that this is a three- committee hearing

          7  leaves room for a great deal of optimism. And I'm

          8  really looking forward to a collaboration with all

          9  of you. The Mayor very candidly remarked on Sunday,

         10   "We need to focus as hard as we can on prevention."

         11    I would hope that that echoes across the board and

         12  throughout the City Council.

         13                 Some things in life have to be

         14  endured.  But when it comes to HIV/AIDS and other

         15  life- threatening diseases, the endurance can be a

         16  hard pill to swallow.

         17                 In years to come, effective HIV

         18  service delivery is a task that must require

         19  partnerships between the government, the infected

         20  and the affected community, research institutions,

         21  and AIDS service organizations.  To that end, I

         22  suggest the following take place:

         23                 Make an effort to enhance mechanisms

         24  to reach out to older adults.

         25                 Fund initiatives to develop
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          2  strategies for maximizing their effectiveness.

          3                 Fund a social marketing campaign with

          4  broad appeal, such as an HIV/AIDS awareness.

          5                 And I would like to think we need to

          6  push the envelope a bit, just not HIV/AIDS specific,

          7  but more from a holistic approach.  To include other

          8  variables that older adults are confronted with.

          9  And as an attempt to address this long overlooked

         10  need of older adults, I urge you to draw upon the

         11  resources of those of us who have been working in

         12  this area.  The New York Association on HIV over

         13  Fifty and I personally, are willing and eager to

         14  lend you our expertise and insight in order to help

         15  you help us.

         16                 Before I close, I just wanted to make

         17  a comment. There are so many comorbidities that

         18  older adults are confronted with.  You know,

         19  hypertension and diabetes, and mental illness was

         20  talked about today.  And certainly, there are times

         21  when even I'm sometimes affected with a mild

         22  cognitive impairment.  I have to hold my breath for

         23  a minute and think, "What did I say a minute ago?".

         24  So it's important that we understand that dynamic.

         25  Heart disease.  Cancer.  Just four weeks ago, I had
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          2  a double biopsy.  You know, they were looking for

          3  cancer.  But thank God the results came back

          4  negative.  And I'm so thankful for that.  When the

          5  doctor gave me the results, I told him that was not

          6  only a Father's Day gift, but a Happy Birthday gift.

          7    Yesterday was my 65th birthday.

          8                 In 2000, 35 million people were at

          9  the age of 65. But in the year 2025, that number is

         10  going to almost double.  What are we going to do

         11  about that?  Are we going to be reactive or are we

         12  going to be proactive?  And we have to tear down the

         13  stigma that Dennis talked about.  Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you.  You

         16  can go next.

         17                 MS. NOKES: Thank you.  Parts of this

         18  testimony were presented by one of our members on

         19  June 1, 2004, at the Care and Treatment Coordination

         20  New York City Commission on AIDS Community Forums.

         21  Not much has changed in the two years since we last

         22  testified.

         23                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         24  testify at the joint hearing of the Council of the

         25  City of New York Committees on Aging and Health.  My
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          2  name is Kathleen Nokes.  I'm the Chairperson of the

          3  New York Association on HIV over Fifty.  The written

          4  remarks reflect the positions of that advocacy

          5  organization.  Ed, Vice Chairperson, presented other

          6  remarks from his unique perspective, as an older

          7  person living with HIV/AIDS, and his advocacy

          8  efforts ensured our presence at this hearing today.

          9                 That AIDS Community Forum used a

         10  question and answer format, and that format will

         11  also be used today to organize our remarks.

         12                 Are you satisfied with the quality of

         13  HIV care and services that you, or people you care

         14  about receive?

         15                 The short answer is "no".  Persons

         16  aged 50 and older live with multiple chronic

         17  illnesses, such as diabetes, high blood pressure.

         18  And yet HIV/AIDS health care providers often lack

         19  expertise in clinically managing treatment plans for

         20  chronic illnesses in addition to HIV/AIDS.

         21                 Number two, What are the greatest

         22  challenges that people face in trying to obtain care

         23  and services for HIV?

         24                 For middle- aged and older persons

         25  living with HIV/AIDS, the greatest challenge is
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          2  finding care providers with expertise in aging and

          3  AIDS issues, including drug/drug interactions,

          4  integrating routine prevention care targeted for

          5  older persons related to screening tests and

          6  immunizations, and symptom identification and

          7  intervention based on etiology.  Since persons are

          8  living with multiple chronic illnesses, it is

          9  difficult to pinpoint the underlying cause that

         10  would respond to treatment. It is also difficult for

         11  providers to stay current in new trends, such as the

         12  new herpes zosters vaccine, targeting persons aged

         13  60 and older, but possibly appropriate with persons

         14  with HIV/AIDS who have herpes zoster.

         15                 What kind of services do you feel are

         16  needed most in caring for people with HIV/AIDS?  Are

         17  those services available? Are they of high quality?

         18                 Research has demonstrated that

         19  middle- aged and older persons respond as

         20  effectively to HIV medications, but may have more

         21  side and adverse effects from the treatment.

         22  Therefore, middle- aged and older persons who are

         23  started in new medication regimens, should be

         24  followed more closely than younger persons starting

         25  on the same regimen.  So that adverse effects can be
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          2  addressed without serious long- term toxicities.

          3  Adherence to ARVs is better in older age groups,

          4  perhaps because persons are already taking multiple

          5  medications and ARVs are just one more group of

          6  drugs.

          7                 There are few services targeting

          8  middle- aged and older persons with HIV/AIDS.  So

          9  it's impossible to evaluate quality.  Housing Works,

         10  at its Brooklyn site, has a targeted program, but

         11  enrollment has been limited due to zip code

         12  restrictions.

         13                 What is the role the City government

         14  in providing HIV care?

         15                 The role of the City government is to

         16  use epidemiological data that it collects to

         17  implement services.  New York City has never

         18  addressed the HIV epidemic in middle- aged and older

         19  adults.  There are few resources related to

         20  prevention and/or treatment.  This is unlike city

         21  governments in other areas in the United States,

         22  such as Phoenix, Arizona; Jersey City, New Jersey;

         23  and cities in Florida.  Using the STARHS method, New

         24  York City identified that seven percent of the

         25  persons aged 50 and older, who tested positive for
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          2  HIV antibodies in public laboratory settings, have

          3  been infected during the prior six months.  The DOC

          4  Department of Health  --  and I think that was clear

          5  from the testimony given earlier  --  does not have

          6  prevention materials targeting that population.  In

          7  fact, we received an e- mail yesterday from New York

          8  City DOH, asking if this fully volunteer advocacy

          9  organization, without any external funding ever, had

         10  such a brochure, and if we could fax it immediately.

         11    We did.

         12                 How are HIV services coordinate?

         13                 They aren't.  Persons living with

         14  HIV/AIDS who are 60 and older can access both the

         15  HIV and aging programs, and yet there is virtually

         16  no coordination.  Neither type of program seems to

         17  recognize that there is significant and growing

         18  overlap in the populations that they are serving.

         19  Although the Department of the Aging is supportive

         20  of outreach to senior centers, there has been no

         21  funding allocated, and many of these senior center

         22  staff are reluctant to address this issue with their

         23  clients, because the clients often react very

         24  negatively, and refuse to participate in educational

         25  programs addressing HIV prevention.
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          2                 Thank you for the opportunity.  We'd

          3  be willing to answer questions.  The new brochures

          4  were developed with the help of the Ryan Center on

          5  97th Street.

          6                      MS. HUNT: I too want to thank

          7  you for the opportunity to talk about this very

          8  important issue among older people.  And your

          9  concern.  My name is Carol Hunt, Executive Director

         10  of Jamaica Service Program for Older Adults.  JSPOA

         11  is a community- based direct service agency in the

         12  borough of Queens, serving the older adult

         13  population since 1972.

         14                 JSPOA provides a variety of programs

         15  that include sponsorship of five senior centers, one

         16  for the mentally frail; case management; home

         17  delivered meals, transportation; employment

         18  services; crime victim assistance; emergency home

         19  care; Life- Line Alert; respite for caregivers, and

         20  many others.

         21                 Several years ago, JSPOA was

         22  approached by Community Resource Exchange to become

         23  one of the agencies they were funded to help build

         24  capacity regarding HIV/AIDS education among older

         25  adults population.  The agency, JSPOA, did not have
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          2  a strong service identify in the community regarding

          3  HIV/AIDS, and decided to build capacity by starting

          4  with staff.  After designing a program that educated

          5  all 100 plus staff persons at the time, CRE assisted

          6  us in designing a program to educate older adults.

          7                 We created a design team, composed of

          8  staff and senior representatives from each of our

          9  five sites.  With the assistance of a consultant

         10  from CRE, our group designed, as a first step, a

         11  survey to find out what exactly did our population

         12  know about HIV/AIDS.  Once finding out that they

         13  were quite aware of most of the important aspects of

         14  the disease, with a few minor exceptions, the design

         15  team set about to create and educational program

         16  primarily for senior center populations that

         17  included:  -- And this was all decided by the design

         18  team, which was a majority of older people  --

         19                 Present the survey finding

         20                 Have personal testimony from a senior

         21  who was affected or infected with HIV/AIDS

         22                 Give updates on the latest research,

         23  medications, by a health care professional

         24                 Show a film that was created for the

         25  older population that was no longer than five to
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          2  seven minutes long

          3                 Demonstration of male and female

          4  condoms

          5                 And a confidential way to be tested

          6                 This approach of educating older

          7  adults who attend senior centers proved to be very

          8  effective.  We designed a special center for our

          9  center that serves the mentally frail.  And these

         10  older people are composed of pre- Alzheimers and

         11  dementia- related older adults.  Participants there

         12  planned how they would face a situation that

         13  involved dating and how they would go about

         14  protecting themselves before becoming intimately

         15  involved.  The presentation was a skit.

         16                 And I'd just like to emphasize here

         17  that older people who are suffering from severe

         18  dementia, or are pre Alzheimers, are still sexually

         19  active.  We have had incidents of older people

         20  selling cigarettes for sex at the center.  And our

         21  staff having to somehow deal with this.  And we

         22  primarily contacted our association with the

         23  Department of Mental Health, that funds that center,

         24  it was doubly funded, in helping us to figure out

         25  how to  --  this was a few years ago  --  how to

                                                            118

          1  COMMITTEES ON AGING, HEALTH AND SENIOR CENTERS

          2  deal with older people who are in this setting, whom

          3  you don't think about sex, but they are talking to

          4  each other, and all that.  So it's alive and well.

          5  It doesn't matter.

          6                 The agency was funded by the New York

          7  Community Trust, in 2004, for one year, to reach 400

          8  senior citizens who had membership in one of our

          9  five senior centers.  Our proposal included

         10  collaboration with local hospitals, HIV/AIDS

         11  organizations, test sites, and the New York City

         12  Department of Health, in Jamaica.  A uniqueness of

         13  our program was that older adults were trained by

         14  Elders Share the Arts.  They were trained in

         15  presentation skills, in order for them to present

         16  before an audience of their peers, their personal

         17  testimony of HIV/AIDS in their lives.  We did find a

         18  film.  It is titled, "The Forgotten Ten Percent."

         19  And it's seven minutes.

         20                 Now our funding will be continued  --

         21    we're really happy about this  --  through a

         22  three- year grant from the New York Foundation,

         23  starting in early July.  In July of this year.  We

         24  will take our presentation on the road, and go to

         25  all the senior centers in Queens with this most
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          2  needed service for older adults to empower

          3  themselves to remain healthy through education.

          4                 We found in our education process,

          5  that this population of older adults, the most

          6  difficult aspect in educating them, was the

          7  challenge to go and get tested.  Our best results

          8  were with the mentally frail population.  Their

          9  caregivers gave permission for the health

         10  organization to perform the noninvasive testing

         11  procedure at the site, after the presentation.  We

         12  now would include testing during all our

         13  presentations.  We feel this will have a dramatic

         14  impact at the presentation, and of course, on our

         15  outcome numbers for those reached as well as those

         16  actually tested.  Should there be someone whose test

         17  returns positive, we will be able to refer them for

         18  confidential counseling.

         19                 JSPOA is indebted to CRE for thinking

         20  of our agency for this timely project.  At the time,

         21  we would not have guessed the position we would have

         22  now, as the only agency in New York City that is

         23  specifically a single- service organization serving

         24  older adults, and targeting senior citizens to

         25  educate them about his disease.
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          2                 The title of this hearing refers to

          3  those older adults in need of services, who will

          4  grow old with HIV/AIDS.  As you have heard, our

          5  project is designed to educate the older adult

          6  population in order for them to protect themselves,

          7  thereby reducing the number of infected senior

          8  citizens in the future.

          9                 However, there will be needed a core

         10  of mental health counselors in the senior center to

         11  assist those who are now affected and later.  The

         12  need for mental health counseling for the older

         13  adult population has increased, because older people

         14  are living longer.  The issue of sustaining loss to

         15  a greater degree, the challenges of continued life

         16  satisfaction in old age, and remaining at home as

         17  infirmities increase, are all needs that come that

         18  need the assistance of a mental health counselor.

         19  The subset of older adults infected with HIV/AIDS

         20  only makes the need more critical.

         21                 I would hope that the senior center

         22  will continue to be the focal point for the delivery

         23  of services for the senior citizen population and

         24  their families.  Having a well- rounded staff that

         25  can meet the needs of citizens as they age, in one
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          2  familiar place in the community, makes economical

          3  and efficient sense.  The senior center is the place

          4  for evolution of the older adult from a well- active

          5  person to needing transportation, if necessary; a

          6  home delivered meal, if necessary; crisis- centered

          7  counseling when needed; and finally, nursing home

          8  rehabilitation, should the need arise.

          9                 Thank you again for this opportunity.

         10                 MR. CABRERA: I don't know what to say

         11  after all this.  Especially, I was away, and I found

         12  out I was called yesterday to present today.  But

         13  I'd like to  --  really, a lot of things that I was

         14  going say  --  Latino Commission on AIDS  -- Dennis

         15  said, in terms of summarizing the statistics, and

         16  some of the differences of terms of servicing the

         17  seniors.

         18                 I'm going to give first the

         19  experience that we have had with AIDS.  The

         20  Institute of Puerto Rican and Hispanic elderly is a

         21  multi- service, multi- ethnic organization, serving

         22  the needs of the elderly and their families.  For

         23  over  --  we just celebrated 29 years, which I say,

         24   --  we haven't celebrated yet, but we're 29 years.

         25  We have very similar  --  in terms of home care, we
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          2  go  -- we really treat the seniors from the very

          3  beginning, to assessments.  We find out the

          4  problems.  We do the advocacy.  And the way we

          5  started with AIDS  --  and I'll just go into the

          6  AIDS, because I could give you that information.

          7  I'll send you the information.  The way we started

          8  with AIDS was really, I was working with the

          9  grandparents, taking care of their children who were

         10  infected with AIDS.  And didn't know where to go.

         11  And this was when I first  --  when the epidemic was

         12  just starting, and we had people from different

         13  parts of the country, especially from Puerto Rico,

         14  coming to find services for their children.  For

         15  their sons that were dying.  And we did a

         16  collaboration with the Gay Men's Health Crisis.  And

         17  we had somebody from our agency, one of the case

         18  workers that was very familiar with the Gay Mens'

         19  Crisis, and we were able to connect the seniors that

         20  needed the help.  The seniors that needed the help

         21  for their children who were dying. And they would

         22  just walk in from anywhere.

         23                 And therefore, we called for a

         24  meeting, for the first meeting with this Hispanic

         25  community on AIDS, to talk about it, and to leverage
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          2  services.  From there, we have a permanent housing

          3  for homeless Hispanic seniors, and we rented the

          4  space to IRIS House, and I think you know IRIS house

          5  worked with women and their families.

          6                 And through them, we did a

          7  collaboration in relation with Latino Commission on

          8  the   --  well Latino  --  through them we were able

          9  to really have a lot of presentations and

         10  discussions about AIDS.  And what we did, going from

         11  first educating the parents, the grandparents, in

         12  terms of their children, than we went into educating

         13  the seniors themselves about what were the services,

         14  and you know, how do you  --  what is AIDS?  And how

         15  does it impact on you as a person?  And we did

         16  discussion groups with the seniors. And sometimes we

         17  did them together with  --  because with the

         18  Hispanic Senior Action Council, we had multi

         19  meetings from seniors all over the City.  And there

         20  we had presentations from the various corporations

         21   --  from the various organizations.  Hospitals,

         22  consultants that were involved in providing the

         23  services.  And we were able to really have

         24  discussion groups with people that have AIDS

         25  themselves, and then you were able to have a peer to
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          2  discuss the issues.

          3                 So what we best basically did in the

          4  senior centers, the seniors were many times

          5  misdiagnosed, because as we all said, --  and the

          6  areas that I'm going to talk to you about is the

          7  same. This is a population that has been marginated

          8  for all their lives. And our situation, we were

          9  focusing on the minorities, with cultural, social,

         10  educational, and language barriers.  That do not

         11  want to talk about alcoholism, drug addiction, much

         12  less homosexuality and AIDS.  And any disease that

         13  may be associated.

         14                 Senior sexuality is another topic

         15  that has been a taboo and must be addressed.  And

         16  continue to address it.  It has been addressed, and

         17  we have very active seniors.  Many times, the men

         18  will receive their monthly pension on Social

         19  Security checks, and have sex with prostitutes, and

         20  after that, they go home and have sex with their

         21  wives.  And infect them.  And if you notice the

         22  statistics, the disproportionate among of women

         23  contracted AIDS through homosexual sex.

         24                 There was somebody who was talking

         25  about how the screening, the importance of
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          2  screening.  And it's not just a one shot screening.

          3  We have one of our senior residents was really  --

          4  she was divorced 11 years ago.  And she was celibate

          5  for 11 years. And she exhibited gastrointestine

          6  symptoms, and severe weight loss. She was tested

          7  numerous times for HIV.  Tests were negative.  And

          8  when she was finally  --  then all the tests were

          9  negative.  When she was finally diagnosed, she had

         10  full- blown AIDS, and died within three months of

         11  that diagnosis.  And who infected her?  Her husband,

         12  right before she was divorced.

         13                 So when you start thinking about

         14  misdiagnosis and screening, it's bad enough that we

         15  have to really keep educating our seniors to be

         16  tested, but at the same time, even when you get

         17  screened, there's no guarantee.  So it's a very

         18  importance  --  the importance of medical treatment,

         19  and proper medical treatment.

         20                 And so, and therefore, I was agreeing

         21  with Dennis and everybody else that have spoken, the

         22  importance of screening, the importance of

         23  education.  And then, so many times,  and I'll just

         24  continue.  Many times, older women who may be

         25  widowed, divorced, or alone may have sex with
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          2  younger men who have the virus and gets AIDS.

          3  Because of that fact, menopausal women may not be

          4  worried about getting pregnant, and may not practice

          5  safe sex. Causing them to become infected with the

          6  virus.

          7                 Older people make the mistakes of

          8  thinking that some HIV/AIDS symptoms are normal

          9  pains and aches of aging.  Fear, shame,

         10  embarrassment, may make them  --  their lives  --

         11  may, and most of the time, make their lives live in

         12  isolation, leading them to depression.  And the lack

         13  of care and early death.  And depression, as the

         14  previous speakers have talked about, the importance

         15  that we really have to say that depression is  --

         16  we have to attack that.  And through our mental

         17  health clinics, we've been able to  --  we have a

         18  mental health clinic at the senior center.  And you

         19  know, and when we first did mental health clinic,

         20  placed the mental health clinic at the center, it

         21  was like, "Well we don't want to go there.  This is

         22  only for crazy people".  And then what we did was a

         23  whole educational program.  And so what we're

         24  talking similar things about AIDS.  But it was a

         25  whole educational program.  There's that  --  mental

                                                            127

          1  COMMITTEES ON AGING, HEALTH AND SENIOR CENTERS

          2  health is not  -- services  --  are not just for

          3  people who are you know, crazy. Mental health is for

          4  somebody who sometimes their loved ones have died,

          5  and they don't know where to go to get some

          6  counseling, or help.  And they feel that they want

          7  to die themselves.  And they stay home.  And

          8  therefore, we were able to do a whole educational

          9  and discussion program at the senior center.  We had

         10  experts within the field.  We had all our  --  which

         11  is important, just people like themselves or

         12  ourselves, to talk that we do need help.  And

         13  through that mental health program that we did at

         14  the senior center, now the mental health clinic is

         15  just a simple place for them to go.  Everybody has

         16  been accepted.  They refer each other. And it's now

         17  a separate situation.

         18                 And now, also we  --  in terms of

         19  AIDS, it's the same thing.  We have to make sure

         20  that we have prevention, that we have educational

         21  forums.  And also, in a culturally sensitive way.

         22  That is so important.

         23                 So those are some of the ideas, and I

         24  think I'll stop there, so if you have any questions.

         25    But the important things is, that we have to do
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          2  things in a very culturally competent and sensitive

          3  way.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: I know Council

          5  Member Vacca has a question.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VACCA: Yes.  Thank you.

          7  All of you really touched on so many things.  I was

          8  concerned, or I can understand the hesitancy of

          9  people who are older getting help.  And reaching

         10  out.  And how do we talk to them about these things?

         11    A thought that occurred to me is, did you ever  --

         12    Well let me tell you what I have, some thoughts

         13  that occurred to me.  One was using 311 a little

         14  more effectively when it comes to this issue.  311

         15  allows for anonymity.  And I was wondering if there

         16  was something the City could do in so much as a

         17  public relations outreach that would encourage

         18  seniors who think they may have this issue, to call

         19  311 and access services anonymously.  Rather than

         20  going to a center and coming face to face with

         21  people.  Be they professionals, or center directors.

         22    So that was one idea.

         23                 Someone mentioned programs in

         24  Arizona, I think, and other cities.  And my comment

         25  is that we in the City should be looking to
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          2  replicate other programs that have been successful

          3  upon evaluation, to see if they work here.

          4                 Depression is mentioned.  But I would

          5  think that depression is not just a stand- alone

          6  issue.  I think depression is probably an impediment

          7  to treatment.  If you are depressed, you are less

          8  likely to get treatment.  So it's a double whammy.

          9  You have a mental health issue, and you're not going

         10  to be getting treatment.  Or if you are told to take

         11  medication, you will be getting it.  You will be

         12  giving up on taking it.  So depression is a double

         13  whammy.

         14                 And I come back to my original point

         15  about medical coverage.  And the issue with medical

         16  coverage is that although Medicaid and clinics and

         17  all provide some coverage for the poor and for the

         18  immigrant, my concern in that regard is, are people

         19  seeing different doctors constantly?  Is there a

         20  consistency of care?  We want people to see the same

         21  doctor, not going in and out of emergency rooms or

         22  into clinics and seeing different people at

         23  different times.  Because quality of health care is

         24  dependent on the fact that you have a doctor who

         25  knows you, knows your medical history, knows your
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          2  personality, how far to push the button with people.

          3    You know, it's very important.  Sensitivity to a

          4  patient.            So let me start with 311.  Do

          5  you think that 311 represents an opportunity that

          6  the City may be missing to reach out to people 50

          7  and older who have HIV issues?

          8                 MR. SHAW: The 311 suggestion is

          9  perhaps something that's doable in the very near

         10  future.  However, I don't know if in the immediate

         11  future, you want to suggest that with any hope of a

         12  positive outcome.  And I say that, because first and

         13  foremost, you have to educate the community on

         14  HIV/AIDS itself.  Just  --  and I'm going to take

         15  myself as an example.  At age 47, in 1988, is when I

         16  was first diagnosed.  There was no information out

         17  in the community.  So why would I want to use a 311?

         18    You have to first provide them with the

         19  information so that they can understand what it is

         20  that they're calling about.  And it first has to be

         21   -- moreover, it has to be culturally and

         22  linguistically appropriate. So that they can ask the

         23  appropriate questions.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VACCA: Well part of my

         25  suggestion is that the City would have to adopt a
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          2  campaign, or an effort.  You know, I did see

          3  statistics recently, that when the City adopted the

          4  smoking patch campaign, stop smoking, the amount of

          5  smoking patches used by people in New York City

          6  tremendously increased.  Now whether they could get

          7  the smoking patches easily on 311, or was that

          8  responsible?  I would think so.  If people just knew

          9  to call 311, the City was out there with

         10  advertisements, now, sensitive advertising of a

         11  program like this at 311, would seem to be a good

         12  way for the City to go.  Of course, it has to come

         13   --  you have to put the horse before the cart.  You

         14  have to do the outreach before you do the 311

         15  program.

         16                 MR. CABRERA: My problem  --  I mean,

         17  that could be good for a certain population.  But

         18  for the overall of some of these people that don't

         19  use 311, that really need to be connected to the

         20  service, you know, they're not going to call and

         21  say, "Hey, you know,"  --   they would go more to a

         22  community- based organization within the area.

         23                 MR. SHAW: That would be a combination

         24  of both.

         25                 MR. CABRERA: And that's what I'm
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          2  saying.  I'm not saying exclusively 311 would be

          3  good for a certain element.  And it would not be

          4  good for really the contacting the person that you

          5  really want to reach that are not able to call in

          6  311 or will not know where to go.  But advertising

          7  and  --  I mean, I think it's a good one --  311

          8  number.  I think it's excellent.  But for what we're

          9  talking about also  --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VACCA: It's got to be a

         11  different component as well.

         12                 MR. CABRERA: It's got to be a

         13  different component -

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VACCA: Well we could be

         15  using NORCs.  We could be using the home- bound meal

         16  program to reach the isolated. I mean, there would

         17  have to be a concerted City attempt to coordinate

         18  their  --

         19                 MR. CABRERA: Senior centers, non-

         20  senior centers. --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VACCA: Churches.  There

         22  has to be something coordinated, where people of

         23  that age group go, or where they have contact.

         24                 MS. NOKES: We get calls pretty often

         25  saying, "I'm 65 years old.  I am living with the
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          2  virus.  I just found out.  What programs can I go

          3  to?"  That's my answer.  Silence.  There are no

          4  specialized programs.  And so we get calls.  Our

          5  name is out there. I get literally  --  my full-

          6  time job is Hunter College.  I'm a nurse, a

          7  Professor of Nursing at Hunter College.  And on an

          8  afternoon, I'll get a call from a woman, and I know

          9  that if she's crying, it's you know, "My doctor said

         10  I should call you".  So having more people call for

         11  services that don't exist, I think is also just not

         12  the way to go.  I think personally, the AIDS

         13  organizations that have been funded to care for

         14  people with AIDS need to answer the questions to the

         15  needs assessment that I did for the PBG, what, now

         16  eight years ago?  Five year ago?  What's the

         17  percentage of your population that are over 50?

         18  What are the unique services?  And are you meeting

         19  those needs?  So I just  -- I think 311 is

         20  interesting, but we're already getting calls that we

         21  don't have anybody to tell them where to go to.

         22  Because there are no programs.  I mean, I can tell

         23  you that Mt. Sinai runs a support group for years

         24  and years.  That's because the social worker there

         25  believes in it, Miriam Malone.  Housing Works has a
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          2  program at Pitkin Avenue.  But the way they were

          3  funded, they were funded for specific zip codes, and

          4  so recruitment is an issue.

          5                 There are not targeted programs to

          6  tell people where to go.

          7                 MR. SHAW: I just wanted to add to

          8  that, one of the things that we have to look at, and

          9  not just in reaching seniors, but anyone within the

         10  community, and that's the issue of confidentiality.

         11  You know, when you spoke about you know, home bound

         12  folk, and Meals on Wheels, and things like that,

         13  there are issues of confidentiality and people are

         14  going to withdraw themselves and go into isolation.

         15  And that's where the denial kicks in.  Because

         16  they're not going to share that information readily

         17  with just any and everybody.  So there are those

         18  issues.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VACCA: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ARROYO: Did you have a

         21  comment?

         22                 MS. HUNT: Yes I did.  If 311  --  in

         23  terms of its usage for just straight referral to

         24  different programs, that would be fine.  But I think

         25  of a woman, one of the women that was trained to do
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          2  the presentation, this was a retired nurse, in her

          3  early 70s, who decided while she wanted to develop

          4  with this gentleman, and if she were to call 311 to

          5  ask, "Well how do I handle myself?", she couldn't

          6  get an answer to that.  The sensitivity that is

          7  needed. What she did on her own, trying to figure

          8   --  and she did it very comically, so the

          9  presentation was wonderful  --  she went out of her

         10  community, to go to a store to buy condoms, and

         11  then, while she was there, also bought a loaf of

         12  bread.  So it was like she was buying other things.

         13  It was hysterical, really.  But also, you realize

         14  the stigma that she holds as professional.  And in

         15  her early 70s, who is trying to protect herself and

         16  her partner. Potentially.  So that you can't get

         17  over 311.  No help along those lines.  But if there

         18  ever is a good referral list for the City, you know,

         19  where can I get help, it would be fine.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ARROYO: Well, I don't

         21  have a question. I have more of a challenge for

         22  those of you sitting at the table. As I said

         23  earlier, to the folks from the Administration and

         24  the Department of Health, and Department for the

         25  Aging.  We're here to begin the dialogue.  And begin
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          2  to shape a strategy for how do we put a program for

          3  prevention, education, tailored for the older

          4  population that addresses all of the issues that

          5  have been brought up in the hearing today.  So I

          6  challenge you to be ready to come forward and be

          7  part of that process.  Because we will not be able

          8  to do something meaningful without you.  And I hope

          9  that you're up to the challenge.  The Co- Chairs and

         10  I will have a discussion about how we can best move

         11  forward.  Expect the phone call for assistance.

         12  I've heard some great testimony and it sounds like

         13  we have more than we think we have.  We just need to

         14  organize some of it a little better.  And copy some

         15  of the things that are being done out there in

         16  Jamaica, Queens maybe.  And bring it back to the

         17  Bronx, and then to Brooklyn, and then Manhattan.

         18  And make sure that we do it in a way that doesn't

         19  rely only on the senior centers as our vehicle for

         20  getting the program out to the community, because

         21  we've heard over and over again, "I'm not going to

         22  go hang out with those -- ".  So with that in mind,

         23  we need to be you know, very creative about how we

         24  do so, so that we address as much of the older

         25  population as possible.
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          2                 I thank everyone for their testimony.

          3    I thank you for being here as long as you were

          4  today.  Very insightful.  Very helpful.  And

          5  confirms that there is something that needs to be

          6  done.  And we certainly have the where with it all

          7  to get it started.  And I'm hopeful for that.  If

          8  not the light at the end of the tunnel, there's not

          9  a train coming at us.

         10                 Oh, the Co- Chair is back.  So thank

         11  you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         13  much.  Also, I just wanted to say thank you for

         14  coming by today.  I mean, it was very informative,

         15  what you've been able to give us.  And we're going

         16  to be tapping your knowledge you know, for the

         17  months to come, because we really want to develop a

         18  good program, to have a good outreach campaign on

         19  this issue.  So I want to thank you.

         20                 And on a sad note, I want to mention

         21  that it is the last day of one of my right hand

         22  person over here.  Ann Thomas is leaving us, and it

         23  is the last Health Committee hearing we're going to

         24  have with her.  So I want to say thank you

         25  personally to her for all the fun that we've had
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          2  over the past couple of months, and especially in

          3  the last Committee hearing on fast food.  So she's

          4  going to be going to Georgetown, so she's going to

          5  take on that campaign over there.  Thank you.

          6                 Okay, and I guess that finishes up

          7  our meeting today.  Thank you.  Meeting is

          8  adjourned.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 1:20 p.m.)
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